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(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1764

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — DoubleLine Total Return Fund)

10 1,367
10 1,367
1,000
1,000
2022 30 UFJ
136.68
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2017 28
2017 28
DoubleLine Capital LP
)
2003 26
)
) 2022
2022 480,000 6,561
136.68 480,000 136.68
1,000,000 1,000,000 3,668
)
2003 26
2009 27
)
2022
EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40
Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)

8/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1925

50

150

M@

2003 11 17

CIMA

CIMA CIMA

20
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
9/213



~A A A A A A

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

20

CIMA

CIMA

10/213

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

11/213



(

(

)

)

26

EDINET

EDINET

198

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

12/213

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JSDA

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA



CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

SEC

NRSRO

50

13/213

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

NRSRO

10



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

F-F AVARAFRAVF 74— (C1O) |

el F—F AAL—F 12T 3718 (cOOT1) |
vIn&3on w0 | (=M | (AT | [ Fv7 (8=t [+~
A ST WP amsm || Emsm || amsm || wmsm

[ FL—Froomm )

; PEEa Erast OiEiE REL. TIRREL
-y ( EEEHOEE BLIFE RS OEE A ERTL PRePE R \\\
g 7. (SEEH)
¥ CEREE GHAEBICRIA
T o BEERSOATICE 55 @5 W TEAE 30 002 it (@ ST - ST
[ EESHOEE ) B B4R A ok e |1 TIED CEREREOEN RS~ NHEER
) AuernERAERELET. LUFEIRSIERE MRS 8
e
| mmo | | |/ vzzem 50
5 = D BT OHAF SAELE [ FAERENER
Z Sk =% Fh Fh GER A TS T (55:52E)
; 2P FEvt—ie— | ciE
o w8 FTx Utomes . wmm o | BoRFrUSEER EELIT. B T & | CRE T 50E A URS.
’ - B AOOEESLFEDA
JCHEEEDS | ki
= . B FSE 4% OSF i 534K
- TR . MITHEAITELT TR z
RELYILG DR, Rk "R 'f'?'ﬁ‘filﬂﬁﬁff
H Y ORE 4
| | FeraroRE & j
5 F L—7 1 52 BIMEEAS ORENE L _
\J [ EF#T O BEBMTOIOFZICAINEES:
\ #HITLI T,
v
WU e T uRSEEEAS )
SERERICOL TER AT -7 || GERUAS IS T ISR L
2 AW 5FAL OB R AT

HE o

2022

15/213



<ERJI—THEE>

BEEEEEEE ENOARES

5 TNFA 2 i—bTAUA REIAITF—A

el 15

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RmEs | B

AR E - Z0—=-
#E3 | ¥ | UL—zayas
TRIAI

D5
TRVAVE

wes| ||

JUTSAFLUR FAl—ials

2022

16/213



15

0.01

15

0.01

15

17/213

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.001

0.001



15

18/213

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ENMEHBI
IREHRRICH T SEEER

O9ERIE. MRS ONEE ARED. RAEROREENSTLONET DT, SESHTLONDE. 20
HEEHESS. 1 DS COEREBEBE THLET.

TR

N

RIHERORARE

SREEO T /FOEEISFOMAMBICE TR, LITOLED, HEcE O—EELL T~ TH, RERMICIE
TAO—EHLRUICHY T DBENSDET.COEBS. UBTAO—BLELICIEST IS bSEEE
LT HREROMRELDET . J7/FCHASOERTRICED. SEiEEHLD 1 OXCOHEEDED
fE_EhotvhEh ol BESEEETY .

i
------- — omE |
j*
RAED
WA LD
10%7h
ARG

=B ) @i EESERS (HREEENCHNA. TELHEN (EEE bR L TERRNSELDET,
AR T SIRIC DL TR, RO EORBL | ECRRIEL.

OHERF. SEMBECRELNBEBX THLWONIBE NS0T, ZOBE . SEHEMMIHD
HERED (HEH)ICHID | DSORAEBIEEL NEOSRIBMCFIHREERQBRLEENT

TRETBCLIHDET I, HREDKER, BTLENRBMICBI BT 7 /R OREFERT EOTIE
BOFE A HEMNI. HERRDOBENSREAOHEEFHSF COBMELET .

SEMNRICREL N EEA THLON SRS

MWHMHM WE S RERICES oEEMS
10.55%KIL
10.50%KE1L. 10. 503K
> o
AED = = SR
w.;"'ﬂ" "gé.m L Hicmas

oA, JrFOaEAHHCRTETILONEY . iﬂ‘_E?"iH:‘JE'IEIa A !ﬂ}fﬂ A P rCECEE Lr‘-
# PRI A—LTED, RROHEEEY | OS3-0HEE SR FrE Y300 TRB0FFAOTOH BT

19/213



@

)

©

(D

©)

®

)
Q)

™
@

)

15

25

10

12

50

JSDA

20
48 12

120

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50 23

10

10
35

VaR
80

20/213



21/213

21

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

12



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2007 - 2008

22/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25/213



FX

26/213

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FX



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MRS )
B —
LS
A7 F IR
)25 H/EBL EgEg
ﬁ ﬁ
B/ B/
e LB
B it i 2 FiEE il
) 2 ERY O 051 7 AR S T
L3 57— TR ety LR IEEMm
o e Rl e L kb W
FZAAT
[ HR 2925k J BFs Y

A
S AL

v

2 PR ]

2022

28/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(BEE®
KFIL(EBR)ISA
FP/FEMORRNBEEISALOBEROLE B 77/ FOFHEER S LU SREAE ENEEHEOIE
%ﬁ% (ZrvH:201 783B0ME) (201 7E78~2022E60) (aiegt-én.«} (201 7#¥7H~2022i6H) ﬁ%
— SCRMAANAR B W
80 20 [{mm FFUROEMBER (EW [ enemecanennand 80
80 T 80
40 10 S T — 40
=74 ) T— &k . . - 20
o o _______A.nnlﬂllll.lll.-..-...u.-..........___,,,m 0
B0 ORI BN | UL SO | N | e | N SRS —20
—40 -40
IrUE Bk GEEE WEER ovEll mEEl s 2017E7A 2018E7H 2019E7A 202087H 2021578
( JF /RSO URAEEE T SAOROEBR. } PR 1S 4 B IERE SR D1 DS UDETT
ERMARERE U EER (5 ey BeaR R R SR L. 201 PRV AROHETEREERELT

s = - EIELT ET,
— o7 e ok el rAa S AR oo w0 s 3 5 MBS E (S BRI S

T | 1o 7o) 122 95l CLoM 2% LA mmiaMONER) . SERGE10) EERALT 0L TIHE
| BAE | 70%| 380%| 31| SAOW] 101%| 11S%| 1% e b Oe0TEY. ERORREGES LUERORRESIEC
Bl | -8.8%]-19.5%] - 152%|-25.0%]| -20.8%)| - 15.8%] - 19.3% BT NUCENRE R a s SrEUET,

# PR P RE SRR E 7 S EERNCHY T S ESICER
LicaoTs.

HETORET SAN IPRDERY REAEIRT A,

wPERRIO MEFANS20 2E6R O ENOERFRICHIFSEE
TEMOREEORE - B/ - PEE, 7rRE8 L FibD R R
HESSACDWTIERLESOTY. 7P/ FOBIERER. 7S
(5 g EH LT BOELTEH BUsER D adTik), BB
HEAEEECE SOTHNLEHRERL ML Wa BT,
feRL, FFrFREN SHOREERE FSEnuv s, EEBLE
BHT*aEEEEL Y,

<HRET SO

B % 8 - BEREEEN{TOPNX, L)

SEEEE - MSCIKOKUSA M 277 Z (B

FRRES - MECIT T — 3700 F—drap o of 2707 LA
B S - NOMURA-BPIETR

SR - FTSERHEMr T2 X BR<EE)

SREE - IPELAVGRLEMS O - Fal—2 7748
HEEHRE . EFILBRLT BUET,

29/213



¥EIL(E2E ISR

TPUREMDIRRNBEEIS AL OEERD T

(90} (Frl 20 FEIREE) (201 7E7R—20225868H)
100

O Feim
B} pressmehecsscsssmsss s ss s m s e ].!?.—\‘ b
rm Bl

[S10 8 SEEEERE

JrvE BEE GREE FREE B3El AN fEmE

[ T RSO R R T S D TFEREER. |
FEECREER LU RREER () ,

Tro/E | Bk [Rm iR i O F E| e m i i)
Tl 15%]  7.4%| 12.2%| 95%| —1.2%] 22% 16%
l.'kg BO%| 389%] 531%]) S89%| 101%| 11.5% 17.7%
L) —8.7%]|-19.5%]-152%|-250%|-208%| - 15.8%|—-19.3%

# PR T » vEERENREE S AR ERNCHE TR &30S
LB EoTT.

HETORET SN D7 VDR S RUED A,

@ FIRI2201 7E7BrS202 226 A DSEMDEBF LB SEE
TEMORERCRY -8 - T8, 752 RE RO RN
RBECSACOVWIETFLERDTT. 7P VRONERE, SE2
(HE ) EF FRLC L OEL TR HLCER O LOTEY BB
SEEEECE ST L ENRE R M S st BT,
TerEL, 77 PFREE EEOEREE D SE s, EEGLEE
HHTESHEEELTVET.

<ERET SRR

B # # - WilEEE(TOP, LA

SEREEH - MECI-KOKUSA LY 25w T (BSA)

FEES - MSCIIR— 327 T o w2 Z B
B S - NOMLRA-BPIEHE

SN - FTSEHAERL YT T X (BECBE)

SRS - PEAAVEBIEMIO—/TL - Tl =27 aF
HEENL, EFLBRLT BUET,

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

77 NOEMEER G LU ERR R ANEERRORE

R (201 7EFB-20222EH) (%)

Fele] 100
— e RErR IR R (ER)

20 o - TR MR (M) | e e meneneeed B

2017E7A 2018E7E 01SE7A 2020E7E 2021878

o BN S 2 BRI S R e O JOMET T .

s Ao s A N A TSR, 20 FETAFOREE EEEER S LT
bl T T,

BOPMPONEEEREEREEE L UFEHREEERECEDE
EETEMONER) 3, Si0E S =Rl s OELTEH N
Lfe iR PO eOTEl), RGO RIS SRR B SIS
BN SSHAE MU B S ST,

30/213



A\BAR)Z5A
TrUEEMDRENEEEIS A

(90} (Frl 20 FEIREE) (201 7E7R—20225868H)
100

© Tm

B} pressmehecsscsssmsss s ss s m s e ].!?.—\‘ b
rm Bl

su ST rEsmm s maE mm

JrvE BEE GREE FREE B3El AN fEmE

[ T RSO R R T S D TFEREER. |
FEECREER LU RREER () ,

Tro/E | Bk [ami R O F E| e i i)
Tl | -08%] 90% A67%| 11.0%] 01%] 7% 3.0%
l.‘kﬁ ab6%| 421%] 598%) 627%] S54%| 114%| 19.3%
BN |- 100%]-160%]-124%]|-194%] -35%] -45%] -9.4%

# PR T » vEERENREE S AR ERNCHE TR &30S
LB EoTT.

HETORET SN D7 VDR S RUED A,

@ FIRI2201 7E7BrS202 226 A DSEMDEBF LB SEE
TEMORERCRY -8 - T8, 752 RE RO RN
RBECSACOVWIETFLERDTT. 7P VRONERE, SE2
(HE ) EF FRLC L OEL TR HLCER O LOTEY BB
SEEEECE ST L ENRE R M S st BT,
TerEL, 77 PFREE EEOEREE D SE s, EEGLEE
HHTESHEEELTVET.

<ERET SRR

B # # - WilEEE(TOP, LA

SEREEH - MECI-KOKUSA LY 25w T (BSA)

FEES - MSCIIR— 327 T o w2 Z B
B S - NOMLRA-BPIEHE

SN - FTSEHAERL YT T X (BECBE)

SRS - PEAAVERIEMI O/ Tl =27 aF
HEENE ABELTEET,

EDREBERD R

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

77 NOEMEER G LU ERR R ANEERRORE

[1z:)] (201 7&E7B~z2022&eH) (%)
25,000 100
— SRR R (R
20000 4= 2RO EMBER(EMN) | creeemneeeeeaad B0
15,000 prreemsamssmsmanssssns s mss s as sas sn e e B0
10,000 . i o P,
B D00 precsesssscsassncsnsnsnssnssssnsssssasnsnsssnassasd B}

2017E7A 2018E7E 01SE7A 2020E7E 2021878

o BN S 2 BRI S R e O JOMET T .

s Ao s A N A TSR, 20 FETAFOREE EEEER S LT
bl T T,

BOPMPONEEEREEREEE L UFEHREEERECEDE
EETEMONER) 3, Si0E S =Rl s OELTEH N
Lfe iR PO eOTEl), RGO RIS SRR B SIS
BN SSHAE MU B S ST,

31/213



A(E2m) 7S5A
TrUEEMDRENEEEIS A

(90} (Frl 20 FEIREE) (201 7E7R—20225868H)
100

© Tm

B} pressmehecsscsssmsss s ss s m s e ].!?.—\‘ b
rm Bl

su ST rEsmm s maE mm

JrvE BEE GREE FREE B3El AN fEmE

[ T RSO R R T S D TFEREER. |
FEECREER LU RREER () ,

Tro/E | Bk [ami R O F E| e i i)
Tl | -05%] 90% A67%| 11.0%] 01%] 7% 3.0%
l.‘kﬁ 49%| 421%] 598%) 627%] S4%| 114%| 19.3%
B -96%|-160%]-124%]|-194%] -35%| -45%] -9.4%

# PR T » vEERENREE S AR ERNCHE TR &30S
LB EoTT.

HETORET SN D7 VDR S RUED A,

@ FIRI2201 7E7BrS202 226 A DSEMDEBF LB SEE
TEMORERCRY -8 - T8, 752 RE RO RN
RBECSACOVWIETFLERDTT. 7P VRONERE, SE2
(HE ) EF FRLC L OEL TR HLCER O LOTEY BB
SEEEECE ST L ENRE R M S st BT,
TerEL, 77 PFREE EEOEREE D SE s, EEGLEE
HHTESHEEELTVET.

<ERET SRR

B # # - WilEEE(TOP, LA

SEREEH - MECI-KOKUSA LY 25w T (BSA)

FEES - MSCIIR— 327 T o w2 Z B
B S - NOMLRA-BPIEHE

SN - FTSEHAERL YT T X (BECBE)

SRS - PEAAVERIEMI O/ Tl =27 aF
HEENE ABELTEET,

EDREBERD R

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

77 NOEMEER G LU ERR R ANEERRORE

[1z:)] (201 7&E7B~z2022&eH) (%)
25,000 100
— SRR R (R
20000 4= 2RO EMBER(EMN) | creeemneeeeeaad B0
15,000 prreemsamssmsmanssssns s mss s as sas sn e e B0
10,000 — i
E D00 precsesssacsansscsnsnssnsnssssnssssssnsnnssnassand B

2017E7A 2018E7E 01SE7A 2020E7E 2021878

o BN S 2 BRI S R e O JOMET T .

s Ao s A N A TSR, 20 FETAFOREE EEEER S LT
bl T T,

BOPMPONEEEREEREEE L UFEHREEERECEDE
EETEMONER) 3, Si0E S =Rl s OELTEH N
Lfe iR PO eOTEl), RGO RIS SRR B SIS
BN SSHAE MU B S ST,

32/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TOPIX
JPX JPX

MSCI-KOKUSAI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

MSCI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

NOMURA-BPI
FTSE

FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
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35,550,505.63 95.35
1,836,641.99 4.93
37,387,147.62 100.28
-103,096.15 -0.28
37,284,051.47
100.00
5,095,984,155
2022
FHR 4326 BZ 3% 2044
3 3,831,692.25| 98.94( 3,791,226.54| 94.04| 3,603,455.59| 9.66
04/15/44 15
FNR 2014-29 BZ 3% 2044
3 2,554,461.50 | 99.50| 2,541,748.56| 94.29| 2,408,526.39| 6.46
05/25/44 25
US TREAS BDS 2.875% 2052
2.875 2,100,000.00| 96.36| 2,023,564.20| 95.23| 1,999,921.88| 5.36
05/15/52 15
VISIO 2019-2 M1 V/R 2054
3.26 1,575,000.00 | 100.00| 1,574,937.80| 94.95| 1,495,518.89| 4.01
11/25/25 11 25
UMBS P#BL5315 2.44% 2032
2.44 1,500,000.00 | 100.35| 1,505,288.65| 91.48| 1,372,147.67 3.68
01/01/32
FNR 2019-74 KT 2.5% 2049
2.5 1,500,000.00| 96.57| 1,448,537.34| 85.76| 1,286,421.00| 3.45
12/25/49 12 25
UMBS P#AS6503 3.5% 2046
3.5 1,132,853.65| 102.43| 1,160,330.86| 98.05| 1,110,800.86| 2.98
01/01/46
UMBS P#BE7188 4% 2047
4 1,100,736.52 | 104.43| 1,149,532.28100.62| 1,107,533.82 2.97
03/01/747
OOMLT 2007-6 1A1 V/R 2037
1.8136 1,092,238.62| 87.45 955,195.66 | 89.10 973,175.11 2.61
07/25/37 25
UMBS P#SD0699 2% 2050
10 2 913,710.29 | 100.81 921,141.73| 87.89 803,057.67 2.15
11/01/50 11
FGLMC P#Q44452 3% 2046
11 3 833,555.49| 99.51 829,472.35| 94.75 789,776.45| 2.12
11/01/46 11
PRPM 2021-2 A2 V/R 2026
12 3.77 600,000.00 | 100.00 599,997.35| 93.77 562,603.08 1.51
03/25/24 25
FGLMC P#Q42197 3.5% 2046
13 3.5 563,934.46 | 102.57 578,454.95| 98.02 552,756.96 1.48
08/01/46
WMABS 2006-HE5 2 V/R 2036
14 1.8536 1,219,891.73| 58.17 709,609.10 | 44.67 544,899.90 1.46
10/25/36 10 25
FNR 2018-33 A 3% 2048
15 3 538,566.54 | 97.37 524,409.08 | 94.10 506,800.43 1.36
05/25/48 25
LBMLT 2006-9 2A2 V/R 2036
16 1.7336 1,411,340.47| 54.42 767,988.41| 35.63 502,832.38 1.35
10/25/36 10 25
STCR 2016-1A AR V/R 2031
17 2.9489 500,000.00 | 100.00 500,000.00| 98.29 491,462.00 1.32
06/15/31 15
SOFI 2017-E B 3.49% 2040
18 3.49 500,000.00 | 99.69 498,462.11| 97.53 487,633.10 1.31
07/26/26 11 26
CWHL 2006-0A5 2A V/R 2046
19 2.0236 589,110.95| 88.06 518,753.80| 81.97 482,914.98 1.30
04/25/36 25
SHMLT 2020-SH1 M V/R 2050
20 3.223 500,000.00 | 100.00 499,997.23| 96.55 482,740.20 1.29
01/28/50 28
WINDR 2018-1A B V/R 2030
21 2.6943 500,000.00 | 97.54 487,676.65| 96.08 480,389.50 1.29
07/15/30 15
JTWN 2019-1A A2 V/R 2032
22 3.2127 500,000.00 | 99.58 497,924.15| 96.06 480,304.00 1.29
04/20/32 20
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VERUS 2021-R1 2.338% 2063

23 2.338 500,000.00 | 100.00 499,985.46 | 95.72 478,588.95 1.28
10/25/63 10 25
UMBS P#7T71827 3% 2047

24 3 497,044.62 | 101.15 502,754.72| 94.77 471,031.31 1.26
07/01/747
GNMA 11 P#785609 2.5% 2051

25 2.5 467,006.68 | 104.97 490,236.67 | 91.14 425,648.85 1.14
08/20/51 20
CWALT 2005-4 1A 5.5% 2035

26 5.5 555,334.76 | 91.53 508,317.56 | 76.24 423,401.94 1.14
04/25/35 25
FNA 2022-M4 A1X V/R 2030

27 2.4654 435,895.61 | 102.26 445,762.01| 96.05 418,679.83 1.12
05/25/30 25
RALI 2007-QH5 Al V/R 2037

28 2.0836 970,758.42| 70.53 684,687.72| 42.49 412,444.77 1.11
06/25/37 25
CWALT 2007-0A8 1 V/R 2047

29 1.9836 487,885.70| 86.92 424,070.30| 82.30 401,541.88 1.08
06/25/47 25
UMBS P#CBO705 3% 2051

30 3 400,293.60 | 105.13 420,844.48| 93.51 374,301.80 1.00
06/01/51
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2021 2022
2018 28 8,686,382.00 1,187,254,692 9.87 1,349
2019 28 2,762,565.00 377,587,384 9.87 1,349
2020 29 2,527,093.00 345,403,071 10.40 1,421
2021 28 3,912,075.00 534,702,411 10.06 1,375
2022 28 2,334,065.00 319,020,004 9.64 1,318
2021 3,750,857.49 512,667,202 10.08 1,378
3,741,425.00 511,377,969 10.06 1,375
3,465,012.44 473,597,900 9.98 1,364
10 3,227,020.43 441,069,152 9.95 1,360
11 3,028,400.78 413,921,819 9.96 1,361
12 3,008,783.81 411,240,571 9.90 1,353
2022 2,359,319.61 322,471,804 9.75 1,333
2,334,065.00 319,020,004 9.64 1,318
2,264,035.92 309,448,430 9.35 1,278
1,829,239.43 250,020,445 9.13 1,248
1,815,542.38 248,148,332 9.06 1,238
1,791,883.69 244,914,663 8.93 1,221
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 4,232,363,447 9.93 1,357
2019 28 23,351,368.00 3,191,664,978 10.05 1,374
2020 29 39,075,715.00 5,340,868,726 10.73 1,467
2021 28 19,700,876.00 2,692,715,732 10.50 1,435
2022 28 11,429,343.00 1,562,162,601 10.19 1,393
2021 16,476,324.69 2,251,984,059 10.57 1,445
15,896,842.00 2,172,780,365 10.56 1,443

14,941,965.08 2,042,267,787 10.45 1,428

10 13,746,949.26 1,878,933,025 10.44 1,427

11 12,706,503.78 1,736,724,937 10.47 1,431

12 12,020,083.02 1,642,904,947 10.42 1,424

2022 11,729,503.09 1,603,188,482 10.29 1,406
11,429,343.00 1,562,162,601 10.19 1,393

10,890,644.32 1,488,533,266 9.85 1,346

10,505,911.72 1,435,948,014 9.64 1,318

10,207,664.40 1,395,183,570 9.58 1,309

9,868,001.00 1,348,758,377 9.47 1,294
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2022 28 533,542,314 9,111
2021 433,209,870 9,524
574,727,142 9,498

570,736,782 9,432

10 569,000,142 9,402

11 560,537,511 9,414

12 547,148,323 9,345

2022 539,247,586 9,209
533,542,314 9,111

516,876,196 8,825

504,676,715 8,616

488,350,486 8,541

481,197,091 8,415
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 29 4,110,797,927 10,045
2021 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2022 28 3,212,368,614 9,437
2021 3,388,503,872 9,805
3,384,583,414 9,794

3,351,719,851 9,699

10 3,322,386,674 9,683

11 3,326,331,191 9,707

12 3,307,092,581 9,651

2022 3,261,793,979 9,526
3,212,368,614 9,437

3,102,740,025 9,115

3,072,833,231 8,914

3,042,233,821 8,850

2,999,974,087 8,735
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0.12 16 0.06 8
0.24 33 0.12 16
0.24 33 0.12 16
0.24 33 0.12 16
0.24 33 0.12 16
2022 0.02 3 0.06 8
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
1.16 159 0.60 82
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60 40
120 80
120 80
120 80
120 80
2022 10 40
10 0
10 0
10 0
580 400
-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18
-1.79 -1.81 -2.82 -2.35
100x
10
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
30,822 177,738 242,038
(30,822) (177,738) (242,038)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929,636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3,642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
65,867 820,866 1,121,150
(65.,867) (820, 866) (1,121,150)
139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135, 405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50, 556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
17,034 7,844 58,561
(17,034) (7.844) (58,561)
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588,854 113,665 475,189
(588,854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
2,526 34,245 340,386
(2,526) (34,245) (340, 386)

50/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 0.001 100 0.01

0.001 10,000
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2022 28
2022 28
47,869,583 45,594,441 6,231,848
804,052 109,898
1,551 212
168,907 23,086
638 87
46,569,589 6,365,131
41,180 5,628
31,497 4,305
45,705 6,247
22,426 3,065
13,461 1,840
9,143 1,250
6,379 872
1,524 208
117 16
95,397 13,039
15,706 2,147
282,535 38,617
46,287,054 6,326,515
49,005,301 6,698,045
(2,718,247) (371,530)
46,287,054 6,326,515
533,542,314
58,561 9,111
3,212,368,614
340,386 9,437
2,334,065
242,038 9.64 1,318
11,429,343
1,121,150 10.19 1,393
136.68
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2022 28

2,145,548 293,254
2,145,548 293,254
363,689 49,709
320,902 43,861
97,084 13,269
32,471 4,438
15,001 2,050
10,697 1,462
10,001 1,367
70,368 9,618
920,213 125,775
1,225,335 167,479
(653,704) (89,348)
(3,198,445) (437,163)
(3,852,149) (526,512)
(1,445,174) (197,526)
287,798 39,336
(1,157,376) (158,190)
(5,009,525) (684,702)
(3,784,190) (517,223)

136.68
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2022 28

1,225,335 167,479
(3,852,149) (526,512)
(1,157,376) (158,190)
(3,784,190) (517,223)
(57,455) (7.853)
(256,371) (35,041)
(82,783) (11,315)
(197,469) (26,990)
(594,078) (81,199)
17,034 1,476,745 201,842
2,526 227,591 31,107
30,822 306,349 41,872
65,867 689,532 94,245
7,844 (671,265) (91,749)
34,245 (3,061,033) (418,382)
177,738 (1,761,599) (240,775)
820,866 (8,596,434) (1,174,961)
(11,390,114) (1,556,801)
(15,768,382) (2.155,222)
62,055,436 8,481,737
46,287,054 6,326,515

136.68
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2022 28

(3,784,190) (517,223)
(28,644,420) (3,915,119)
44,883,788 6,134,716

(79,265) (10,834)
653,704 89,348
1,445,174 197,526
(287,740) (39,328)
2,286 312
(1,493) (204)
(25,038) (3.,422)
(390) (53)
(2,881) (394)
(11,147) (1,524)
(16,718) (2,285)
(570) (78)
(1,409) (193)
(19,480) (2,663)
14,110,211 1,928,584
2,699,963 369,031
(15,558, 437) (2,126,527)
(594,078) (81,199)
(13,452,552) (1,838,695)
657,659 89,889
146,393 20,009
804,052 109,898

136.68
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2022 28
2022 2022
28 28 2022 28 2022 28
9,499 9,746 10.06 1,375 10.50 1,435
® 176 225 0.23 31 0.24 33
(444) (454) (0.41) (56) (0.43) (59)
(268) (229) (0.18) (25) (0.19) (26)
(120) (80) (0.24) (33) (0.12) (16)
9,111 9,437 9.64 1,318 10.19 1,393
(2.85) (2.37) (1.84) (1.84)
533,542 3,212,369 2,334 319,011 11,429 1,562,116
2.18 1.71 1.62 1.62
1.88 2.32 2.33 2.34

@

136.68
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2022 28
Q)
98.5
98.5
69.9
Aligned Data Centers Issuer LLC Class A2
300,000 1.94% due 08/15/46(M 0.6 287,494
Aligned Data Centers Issuer LLC Class B
200,000 2.48% due 08/15/46(M 0.4 190,908
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
581,326 5.50% due 04/25/35 1.1 490,793
Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al
525,060 0.55% due 06/25/47® 1.0 461,517
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust 2017-ATRM Class
E
111,000 3.24% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.2 104,600
Bancorp Commercial Mortgage 2019-CRE6 Trust
Class D
100,000 2.46% due 09/15/36(1.(2 0.2 98,259
BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA
874,595 1.33% due 05/15/50® 0.1 47,174
BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA
1,414,193 0.80% due 07/15/60® 0.1 46,075
BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA
1,827,683 0.70% due 02/15/61() 0.1 66,259
BANK 2020-BNK25 Class AS
8,000 2.84% due 01/15/63 0.0 7,916
BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
100,000 3.43% due 03/15/37().> 0.2 91,835
BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2021-C11 Class XA
713,688 1.39% due 09/15/54() 0.2 69,550
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al
272,271  2.71% due 02/25/47® 0.6 268,695
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
107,746 1.44% due 08/25/37(™ 0.2 107,703
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
996,750 1.77% due 09/15/53®) 0.2 98,954
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,528,347 0.73% due 09/15/48().® 0.2 78,421
Benchmark 2021-B27 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,003,816 1.27% due 07/15/54® 0.2 90,228
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2021-21M Class H
100,000 4.20% due 10/15/36(M.(2 0.2 96,535
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2021-VOLT Class
F
100,000 2.59% due 09/15/36(M.(2 0.2 96,996
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(@)

BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2021-XL2 Class E
100,000 2.04% due 10/15/38(1. 0.2 97,617
BX Trust 2018-EXCL Class C
101,338 2.17% due 09/15/37().(> 0.2 96,768
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
129,000 4.08% due 12/09/41().(® 0.2 115,502
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41().® 0.2 78,731
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
417,952 0.35% due 10/25/36® 0.9 409,341
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,390,064 1.27% due 05/10/50® 0.1 63,287
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C8 Class
XA
1,101,531 1.49% due 06/15/50() 0.1 67,723
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2Al1
640,613 0.59% due 04/25/46® 1.2 555,296
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2014-GC19
Class XA
1,981,847 1.12% due 03/10/47®) 0.1 35,200
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,493,913 0.72% due 11/10/48® 0.1 34,197
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
335,573 1.11% due 04/14/50® 0.0 15,875
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(%).(®) 0.2 90,614
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class F
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(.(® 0.2 86,715
CLNC 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS
100,000 1.71% due 08/20/35(1.(2 0.2 99,788
COMM 2013-CCRE9 Mortgage Trust Class XA
13,982,037 0.05% due 07/10/45® 0.0 5,903
COMM 2013-LC6 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,166,623 1.26% due 01/10/46® 0.0 6,077
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,181,750 0.67% due 07/10/48®) 0.1 41,094
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,267,593 1.07% due 12/15/52() 0.2 74,882
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
103,015 2.26% due 08/15/37() 0.2 100,546
CSMC 2021-B33 Class Al
100,000 3.05% due 10/10/43® 0.2 98,379
Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-2
Class D
250,000 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.5 244,149
Fannie Mae-Aces Class AlX
463,000 2.47% due 05/25/2030 1 471,142
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Q)
Fannie Mae REMICS 2018-33 Class A
615,248 3.00% due 05/25/48 1.3 615,553
Fannie Mae REMICS Class BZ
2,529,076 3.00% due 05/25/44 5.6 2,593,964
Fannie Mae REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 3.2 1,482,580
Fannie Mae-Aces Class X2
1,627,003 1.24% due 03/25/31® 0.3 133,619
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
431,308 5.30% due 07/15/43® 0.9 422,032
Freddie Mac REMICS Class BZ
3,793,614 3.00% due 04/15/44 8.4 3,896,602
Freddie Mac REMICS Class SD
2,560,908 2.55% due 08/25/51® 0.3 129,488
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A
318,404 3.97% due 12/15/441.(* 0.7 315,964
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Gl
1,145,206 2.00% due 11/20/50 0.3 123,281
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
2,088,106 0.59% due 05/16/61(® 0.3 126,630
1,818,553 0.83% due 02/16/63() 0.3 137,493
1,723,002 0.98% due 05/16/63(® 0.3 140,989
1,521,270 1.14% due 08/16/62® 0.3 133,940
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class E
101,000 2.92% due 12/15/36().(> 0.2 96,959
Great Wolf Trust 2019-WOLF Class F
101,000 3.32% due 12/15/36(M).(> 0.2 95,949
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2015-GC28 Class
XA
1,415,887 0.98% due 02/10/48® 0.1 34,051
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
864,549 1.02% due 05/10/50® 0.1 40,318
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
974,163 1.11% due 08/10/50® 0.1 43,610
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2018-GS9 Class C
200,000 4.36% due 03/10/51® 0.4 203,327
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
1,225,458 0.67% due 02/13/53®) 0.1 51,542
HPLY Trust 2019-HIT Class F
78,997 3.34% due 11/15/36MD.® 0.2 76,225
Jamestown CLO XI1 Ltd. Class A2
500,000 2.40% due 04/20/32(.® 1.1 500,997

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2014-C20 Class XA
1,740,457 0.86% due 07/15/47® 0.0 20,883
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B
100,000 3.40% due 08/15/49( 0.2 99,360
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(@)

JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2018-WPT Class FFX

67,000 5.54% due 07/05/33M.® 0.1 66,515
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D

120,000 1.85% due 07/15/36().(> 0.3 116,933
JP  Morgan Chase  Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E

100,000 3.86% due 12/05/38(1.() 0.2 92,474
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2014-C23 Class D

100,000 3.99% due 09/15/47(1).® 0.2 94,496
JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA

975,300 1.20% due 11/15/48®) 0.1 24,052
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class B

107,000 3.29% due 05/13/53® 0.2 105,408
JPMDB  Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA

914,091 1.65% due 05/13/53® 0.2 88,229
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust 2020-GS4 Class Al

337,034 3.25% due 02/25/60M.(* 0.7 335,853
Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2

1,427,847 0.30% due 10/25/36(> 1.2 574,702

MASTR Asset Backed Securities Trust 2007-HEl
Class A3

924,810 0.40% due 05/25/37® 2.0 905,291
Med Trust 2021-MDLN Class G

100,000 5.44% due 11/15/38().(> 0.2 97,580

Merrill Lynch Alternative Note Asset Trust
Series 2007-0AR5 Class 1Al
914,522 2.22% due 10/25/47® 0.8 376,686
Morgan Stanley Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Trust 2014-C19 Class XA
951,658 0.96% due 12/15/47® 0.0 19,960
Morgan Stanley Capital | 2017-HR2 Class C
100,000 4.22% due 12/15/50® 0.2 101,759
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA
1,148,160 1.50% due 08/15/49() 0.1 56,754
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA
1,086,947 0.66% due 12/15/49® 0.1 28,974
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA
892,909 1.34% due 06/15/50) 0.1 44,273
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA
1,685,749 0.64% due 11/15/52®) 0.2 70,919
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(@)

Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D
113,000 3.75% due 12/15/38(® 0.2 110,336
Option One Mortgage Loan Trust 2007-6 Class
1A1
1,144,536 0.38% due 07/25/37> 2.3 1,067,290
PMT Credit Risk Transfer Trust 2019-2R Class
A
329,414 2.86% due 05/27/231.® 0.7 327,407
PRET 2021-RN2 LLC Class Al
463,568 1.74% due 07/25/51(.(% 1.0 452,331
PRPM 2021-2 LLC Class A2
600,000 3.77% due 03/25/26(1.® 1.3 581,548
RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3
451,284 6.00% due 09/25/36 0.9 419,287
RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All
978,558 0.65% due 06/25/37(® 1.0 454,770
RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3
381,803 0.39% due 01/25/37> 0.8 367,043
Renaissance Home Equity Loan Trust 2006-4
Class AF2
640,065 5.29% due 01/25/37(4 0.6 285,305
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B
500,000 3.49% due 11/26/40M 1.1 504,835
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C
250,000 4.16% due 11/26/40M 0.5 253,066
Soho Trust 2021-SOHO Class B
77,000 2.70% due 08/10/38(M.() 0.2 68,531
Sprite 2017-1 Ltd. Class A
1,140 4.25% due 12/15/37M 0.0 1,114
Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1
500,000 3.22% due 01/28/50.® 1.1 499,507
Stack Infrastructure Issuer LLC Class A2
460,000 1.89% due 08/25/45(® 1.0 441,225
Steele Creek CLO 2016-1 Ltd. Class AR
500,000 1.32% due 06/15/31(1.® 1.1 498,112
Taco Bell Funding LLC Class A23
199,500 2.54% due 08/25/51(M 0.4 187,035
Taco Bell Funding LLC Class A2l
299,250 1.95% due 08/25/51(M 0.6 286,520
Tharaldson Hotel Portfolio Trust 2018-THPT
Class E
2,430 3.59% due 11/11/341.® 0.0 2,351
THL Credit Wind River 2018-1 Clo Ltd. Class B
500,000 1.89% due 07/15/30M.® 1.1 497,007
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA
907,484 1.53% due 06/15/50® 0.1 58,686
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class B
100,000 4.09% due 08/15/50® 0.2 100,324
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(@)

UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class
XA
2,317,746 1.07% due 08/15/50® 0.2 97.853
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 2013-
C5 Class XA
1,587,558 0.88% due 03/10/46()).® 0.0 6,645
Upstart Pass-Through Trust Series 2021-ST7
Class A
212,950 1.85% due 09/20/29 0.5 208,803
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63M 1.1 494,591
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54(M.() 3.3 1,541,630
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
422,862 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.6 286,053
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE3 Trust Class 1A
649,856 0.34% due 08/25/36( 1.4 626,627
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE5 Trust Class 2A3
1,294,130 0.42% due 10/25/36®™ 1.5 684,176
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
728,534 1.61% due 03/15/59® 0.1 39,417
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
904,392 1.01% due 07/15/50® 0.1 37,116
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,457,408 0.84% due 12/15/52® 0.2 78,319
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2Al

397,461 2.60% due 10/25/36® 0.8 386,754
32,356,566
6.2
U.S. Treasury Bond
1,600,000 2.25% due 02/15/52 3.5 1,624,000
1,200,000 2.38% due 05/15/51 2.7 1,247,203
2,871,203
22.4
Fannie Mae Pool
420,292 3.00% due 11/01/46 0.9 428,895
1,147,908 3.50% due 01/01/46 2.6 1,208,187
1,295,579 4.00% due 03/01/47 3.0 1,378,148
459,916 2.00% due 04/01/51 0.9 442,006
979,843 2.00% due 08/01/51 2.0 940,968
1,500,000 2.44% due 01/01/32 3.3 1,509,672
379,386 2.50% due 02/01/51 0.8 374,778
422,535 3.00% due 06/01/51 0.9 426,986
Freddie Mac Gold Pool
891,882 3.00% due 11/01/46 2.0 912,354
589,693 3.50% due 08/01/46 1.3 616,401
169,927 3.50% due 11/01/46 0.4 177,557
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(@D)
Freddie Mac Pool
952,409 2.00% due 11/01/50 2.0 918,812
530,760 3.00% due 07/01/47 1.2 543,279
GNMA 11 Pool
483,966 2.50% due 08/20/51 1.1 488,629
10,366,672
45,594,441
47,869,583 45,594,441
47,869,583 98.5 45,594,441
1.5 692,613
100.0 46,287,054
(6,326,514,541 )
(1)144A 1933 144A
(2)2022 28 Floating Rate
(3)2022 28 Variable Rate
(4)2022 28
136.68
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Brown

Brotﬁers 54,666 2022 30 (473) 2 2

Harriman &

Co.

CITI PB 538,344,700 2022 30 (4,690,692) (13,677) (13,677)

CITI PB 28,915 2022 30 (3,317,786) 90 90
92 (13,677) (13,585)

CITI PB 3,216,614,639 2022 30 (28,026,929) (81,720) (81,720)

CITI PB 174,230 2022 30 (19,991,787) 546 546
546 (81,720) (81,174)
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CIMA

BBH

2022

NRSRO



GAAP

GAAP

946

FASB

12
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2022 28

2022 28
45,594,441 45,594,441
638 638
45,595,079 45,595,079

2022 28
95,397 95,397
95,397 95,397

2022 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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67,160 10 1,326
37
3,015,726 29 422,001
38
19,584,720 28 2,776,272
2022 28
)
)
) ) )
2021 28 4,402,070 34,040,415 3,912,075 19,700,876 62,055,436
1,476,745 306,349 689,532 2,700,217
(671,265) (3,061,033) (1,761,599)  (8,596,434)  (14,090,331)
(57,455)  (256,371) (82,783) (197,469) (594,078)
(517,646) (3,059,405) (39,977) (167,162)  (3,784,190)
2022 28 4,632,449 27,891,197 2,334,065 11,429,343 46,287,054
2021 28 49,371 372,105 388,954 1,876,149 2,686,579
17,034 30,822 65,867 116,249
(7,844) (34,245) (177,738) (820,866)  (1,040,693)
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58,561 340,386 242,038 1,121,150 1,762,135
79.10 81.94 9.64 10.19
10,000

10.00
10

2022 28

2022 28 41,180
10
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2017
15
15
2017
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2022 28 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 2
CITI PB 636 (636)
638 (636) 2
2022 28 MNA
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MNA
(€]
CITI PB 95,397 (636) 94,761
95,397 (636) 94,761
€Y
2022 28
638 (95,397)
2022 28
(3,199,599) 287,740
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2022 28
363,689 2022 28 22,426
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
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28 13,461

28

2022 28

2022 28

10

11

15,000

1,524

45,705

FATCA/CRS

2022 28
15,001 2022 28
2022 28
2022 28
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2022

0.015
2022

0.02
10,697

0.60
320,902
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2007 - 2008

1970
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LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
2020 COVID-19
COVID-19
2022 24 COVID-19
12
13
2022 26
2022 2022 26 1,718
469,844 4,325 100, 256
2022 2022 26 93,995
323,852 385,992 922,733
22,493 115,204
21,066 67,209
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMEMT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2022

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Buvat!

brvmdmark s i peoundies, of velus | of USD &7, 880, 50 ) L¥}! ] A%, 50441
Cath BO&O5T
e vable for aubponption procdeds 1,551
Eréprait receivable 168507
Lirw gl zed sppreciation on foreerd foregn ourmency eschange orbracks [ o]
Total seets 46569, 559
Lishiies:

Papablgfor Unitt redpemad 41,180
Papablefor invegments parchased 81497
Accruad distribesorsfees L5705
Aer usid m n e el lnes 224G
Anapd fust odan rd pb-sdminirator's fem 13087
Aerusid § rulen Teai 143
Ancrygd rand e agent feas BATS
poruad mperd. company's fees 180
Apiruad regmration lies 117
Lhrewl ovd deperwciation on foreerd forsign currency enchange cortrady P57
dsorgd othar eapenees 15, 1ok
Tiotal kit FFRF]
et Azrets Attributable to Unithaldars wsh A6 TET 054
#enabyrlr of Net freot:

Pad m capital Ui 45,008 #01
Tonal distributable loss [.718287)
et Appetr Atirbutabds to Unithalder sl 46787 064
et Arret Valoe pariink

(0P isonthly Destribution Class Py 533,547, 318+ S8 561 Uink £ cutstmnding] IPY 9111
{# SamAnnual Distrbetion Qass 0P 3,210 3600614 + 340, 356 Units oot tancing) 1P 4437
{LED Morhly Ditrbution Chasd 2 330065 « 205 Unas ot iterdng) LD el
LD Sa - Annoal Dimnboteoen Claks £ LAT9,343 + 1,121, 150 Unin g oot s2aali g [} ] 10019

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMNT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Irmatmant Incoma:
]
Totml Irverstment rosms

Expandas;
Mlanigam e e
Dastributor’ sfees
Dok dd fuch. dlen Pt oS T
Prodwiponal lees
Trustes fees
Agent compan s (ees
Tearder agant ferl
(thar guparues
Tital Eichin b

Hiet Imemstment Incama

Realaed and Upresliaad GuiraLoesd:
Aushiznd gurs/fesat)
Inewtm et i s
Fruign cur ey IParieiont i Farwaed {ons gn cuiraney sochengs Lond it
Ner ralpsd loon
Ohargge in unreshiced apprecationfideprecistion)
MR B S S
Feduign cur reney tramssctiong s e ord o gn cumency sodhargs sontract §
Mt chiangs in unnasl e doprecition
Nt raaleed and unredaedinsses

et deorears in nat assets rasuiing from eparations

S0 1185548

L 185548

I63,EE9
ot K e
o7 0E
32ATY
15,001
10,657
jLiest)
T 35
F o FE]

——-.

(3,704
(3.188.445)
3.852159)

(Lass Ly
287,738

{1,157 376}

{5,009 528)

Wsp (3.0 100}

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.

87/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Incroze (Daoreare] in Mk S cake from:
‘Oparationa:
gt invetment moome LD 1. 235,335
et realiaed losees (%043, 180)
et chisge in unresl ced depretiation 1,157,376}
el iy | it EEeRE | reiu iR Eram Sgeraiond E?E lBﬂt
Ditributions to Unithalden:
¢ Wonk by Distrikatson Jess {57,455)
B Saen sAnnusd Degnbanion Class {356,371}
LISD hlaent by (D ety s {82, 783)
LD SarniAnnusd Distrdsotion Qe 1978680
Fotal Distrbactions 34,078}
Caphal Transsctions:
Ui i
P Meenthly Dmtrikatson Clis | 17034 Uinag) 1,476,785
W Lem el Dastribagion Class {2 526 Units) pri i
LIS ok buly Dt n bateeen Dl { 30822 Unats} 306,383
LD S| -Annusl Deinibuion Olees (65,867 Linas) 683,532
Uit s radeem ed
BPY Wignt Wy Detnlarsen Clasa (7,844 Unis) (&7 L, 265)
W S -Annyel Degtribagicn Clags {34, 245 Lindtx) [3.06L.033)
LD hankhly Distnbation Qessi 177, T8 Uinkts) (3, 64509}
LD Sami~Anrwunl Desbebootinn Oass |7HLB6E Linax) B.S&E.IHE
et decrowss | n net wsset s resulting from capital transetions —11 300 LR
Total Decreade bn et daetn (85,768 582
et Ancete
Begrningof yeu e SLS5.036
bty Rt

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
CarhHlowa from apersting sethitien
et docreass in net assets resukingfrom operations 1.3 a] (& a4, 15a)
Ay eritz to e the et di in met srrets renulting from cparstions to net cach provided by

oparvtiveg sfestia
Porrehiacs of nvesimnt |33, E44,420)
Procads rom e wd maunly of Fee@mectd 44 283, TBE
Bet amortirabeeny and {acoretion] of premium s and discounts on corporate debf cbligations and ghodt term

inmsm s {2650
Healiced losses on iInvegmants in secunbies 51,704
tharge in unresl ted depreosticon on nvsments 1,445,174
Onarspe in urresl ped sppreaaticn on {ors ord fonsgn currency anchinge conlres |287,7&0)

Chanps In s ets and lshiditias relatad to operations:

DM PREES I P P v 1,288
Derwass n aomosd custodan v sobade irisrabor's fees {L403)
D p i an s frof el Y {25,038)
Dicrimss m scoroed brudae he L300y
Diecropss i soorusd regsretion fees {Laa1h
D s b 0w o o et Peas {EL147)
Deeramie in adohued digebutors leet { L6718}
Diecrease n sconosd sgent com pany's Fees L5T0p
Deecromse n trand ar gent fess fL409)
Cucrooss n sooroed other espenses [EEE)
et cash provided by operating scthitien 14,110,211
CarhFows ured infirandng sctheitias:

Froceeds from Unts imssed 1,699,961
Parpimient £ oh Ueit i reduams:d [15 558, 437)
Duatribuinged paid to Uniehalders | 5840780
Mex cash umed in finaneing sethities (13,452 557)
Mt incraane I carh and foreipn oarmenoy GGT 65
Cah wnd fore g cuerency ot begnning of yoar 146,303

Carhard famign surmency ot and of year

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

[Expressed in United States Daollar, unless otherwise indicatad)

JFY Monthly  1PY Sam kAl USD Menihly  USD Sembfnmusl
Ditribution Claas  Dskrl Chiai  Diatdbution Chaee  Dictribution Claie
For the Year Eraded  For the Year Erded  For the Year Endad  For tha Year ndedd
Felwuary 28, 7032 Felwuary 28, 7022 Febouary 28, 2002 Februsry I8, 2022

et vt Vikue, Bagreirg of pew i n4FE Y AT4E LD 1006 LISD 10.50
Kt irvement moom e ime 25 0I5 o024
et realia el end el ped Genes {a44) {A548) {081} (43
b, B 1 VT IS R g o O Ong (i) ray {0 LAY [ERE]
s dmbubong i) [Ba} [ L)) [0.1H
et Aroat Vilue, ardof yaar ol 9,111 P 9457 UsD 564 WD 10.19
Fotal return 1.4 (2arPs [LB4R LB
et et 8 vl of yar {(0G79) Pt 533547 FT AL D L3M VD R Fl
Ratip of epences to average ek assets Iik% L% 56T LEM
Flatin of rl EVeeEim et | FRobs @ BD I BgE Nt

b (8 133 133N LN

" kb o g St LTS oo Mandng far th rei

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandal statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS
February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Principal % of hat
g g Dles LR Fair Value
TIHED IRCORE LEEUIRITIES S50
UMITID STATES (0559
ASUET-RACHID VECUIRIFIES 38 904}
& igrad it s Conbry. IEpuer LLE Clida 4
L C o L] ik s WA
Sigrand Dt Conbar i LLC Oais d
1] MO RAE due 0B SR L (LI
Alteraties Losn Trist 200%-4 Clag 182
] SHLITE RO e 040008 L1 Ll ]
At Loaa Trar 2001 S8 (g LAl
(1] SEEAEE (LSS due e 25T 18 15T
Stevum Haobel Portiobo Trst 200 T-ATRM Ceas £
LS 110,008 318K dus LA S EE 0l 04 B8
Barenp Commircial Mesrtgage 101 0-CR0E Truis Cem O
Lt AOO,0EE LA e ) 5 R 0.3 S84
BN TRETNA Clads M,
L] BRSO e 050 S50 [ aTnlTe
bl 2ORT-BRIE Clids MA
1] LAALEE 0N duedT S0 L] HEATS
BLANC JORR-BNK1D Chada A
0] LETERY QTN du02ASmw L E] I
bt 38 30 hia L Gaan ak
LS 8,008 284N dus 01506 s 7914
BECMS 101 BTALL Mortgage Trust CassF
LED 100,080 3 due 030 5 TEUE [ 53 SLATE
BRCHES Mortgige Trum 1931011 Clee s
L] TIEEE L e 03 5054 or (EEL
By Shie'rs SR Trart 3070 Clast 241
LED man LTI o (122 54T L1 TEEESE
By e Sarel Backied Senuriti | Trst J00THEE Cliid 1AL
4] AT TEE LAg dus0eS5aTe oy 0.y
Berachmark M3-815 Mortgage Trust Class =4
LD TR L77% cum G 5052 ar SR
Barehenick 2000 Mertgaps Trut Quss
1] AN AT (LT e (19,1 548N [ THATE
Barsthumierh T020-B07 hbortgage Trut Class )2
0] LA0RA1E  LITS dumQTA e ar 023
B Cormamreal M it page Tt 1070-11M Qs H
1] 100,000 A0 du L0 SRR oy AT
B et o] M B Trum 203000 T Clmaf
1] I000E 2SN dus 9 50300 0r BEGHE
B Corvomprc all Mot gage Trust 1031502 O £
LD 100,000 200 cum L0/ 50 o.r LA TR
B Trigt PHLRENCL Qi ©
1] BOLEEE 30T o (5 PRI L3 S, A
B st BILSOC1 Class E
L] 170,000 A0 duy LLTa BN oy 115,522
B Tt 205001 Cleis 2B
1] SAELOND  OLLEN due L3,Da4] R [ %3 TR
Camnghon Momgage Loan Tt Serse 2006 NCAClapr 23
(=] AITHET (L chue LOSSIES L5 arn Jay
B S0 008 hbirt B i Tt Cladd WA
(1] BEOEE  LYTR due 080500 L1 EBIET
CFORE Comniarcial Moot e Tirust 200708 Claas =4
] 1401330 Lo e 06,1550 L H] 6713
CHL W et ape Purdd- Theough. Tt 2006008 Clats Tl
L] 81LE1Y 9K duwBR QYT iy RLLEC R
CR g Commincisl Mompipe Tnat 19180019 G M4
1] LASLAAT  LLEN dued30i4T™ L8] 35200
CRigroup Comenencisl Mortpege Tet 10150035 Ol ke
1] LA8390F  OLTEN duel10gE L 34197
CRigroug Commeencial Mortpape Tret 101 707 O
0] IFRATE LI che 048000 L1} 187
CRigrimap Cormmprisl Mot gape T 107.0-859 Qs
LS 100,068  LA0% dus L3A 0 4 mm ¥ ETY AT
CRigroap Comemencisl Mo gape Tt TOX0-955 Class F
LD D000 3500 chue L3 08 b or BETES

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prindpal W of het
Cumsrey _amount Swcurity Dascription Basats Fair Vsl
FEAED INCORSE SECURITIES (39.505) oot ivued)
LIMETED STATES 0.5 5) Grantinund)
ASTT-RACHD WECLIRITIS (50 94) fenntinund)
CLMNC 3901 5-FLL L3d Cleer 45
T LOLOME  171% due DBS0/pERN 0% ush 5,7
CORM TO1T-CERED besrtpiggn Trut Clac 4
LD LM aT D% chum 071 085 (2] w07
CORAR 1013-L06 Mot gage Trus Dads =8
1] 8 065,678 1% chur (11,71 O™ (-] E07T
CORAN JO 15U T B orng g Trusd Rass KA
(1] 7061, TR DETH dus 07/1 0448 L84 A%
CRML PATCL Commariral borkgigs Truid Oidd i
Ut LITIN  LaTH e L3ASAE oy Ta g
CEAAE TG AET Ot &
Lsn E03,01% L IE% due 38,1 5037 ir EDDS&S
CERNC TRTL 8 B Chacrs A1
LD 109,008 AR chs L0/ O oy "R
Emptar dtoen bl Fopcs vakles Trust 3073 -2 Gt
1] 25, 0ded 108 dusr 11 6528 0% 144 143
Farersie hsasaoes Class S1%
(1] 453,000 2ATE dus B9 0 H LRI
Farwide Miss BUMUCE S000- 53 Qi A
(1] [SL8-11] HA0 dum 55,5 5058 i# [FER:8]
Faraie Mae REMUCE Class BT
(1) 519,076 00 o B5,25/48 56 21553, 908
Farwiin Mbasm RERDSS Clads 6T
(1] 1,500,000 L5006 g L3258 ir 1,487 580
Farsrées hamaons Cliss 53
LS50 15637,000 LTS e G325 ™ [ ] [EEY 15
Fracidn Mz REAVECS 4170 Cadd 0
LD a4, 3k S0, oy 377 SN L& ] 421 0¥
Frschd s M b2 RELSCS Oass B2
(1] ER T A due (141548 a4 255 60T
Frechd g il s REMICT Class 5D
[r= 1500960 2ASK cher 00,25 oy b9, 480
S St o Lbd Clas &
(1] Ed, 464 LATH dur L3/ 50400 'Ry 315,564
GovErTenent Hatnsl MomgapeAnociaion O 5
(41 B R0, 306 20 s 11520050 [ ] 13,30
GowerTemant hatonal Mo gape AHoiation Oess 10
(L] T06, 106 55 o 351 651 F {2
LD ERP R DLE chus 02/ 605N [ ] AT AR
ush LEAN0T L cher 05 G s ba, a8y
[1E ] 5351518 1 EES duw 581 £/8 3 0k (L]
et ol Trud 009 A%0LF Class €
LSk AL 000 295% chue 17,1 5 5000 a3 55T
Gafmat Woll Trug J019-WOLF Qe B
e 100,008 AN duLasaeen LE 58987
(58 DG Savcurities Trur JOLS G020 Clads =4
(1] FEL QLSRN du 3371 046 ol FE 05k
5 Morgage feourities Tnat J017 65 Class K8
LD [I=804] L5 chu 05,71 00 [84 4R35
O AEAgage Sadriliel Trudt 2007407 Qi Ha
(12 ] AT 18N 181% o 58 G050 [ CENST)
5 Mot e Sacurities Trudt J0LE G55 Class ©
LSk 100,080 A3 chus 031 0051 L) WIrT
S Mg e SanurTties Trudt 200508 Clis e
(£ 1,775,438 ST due 03,1 355 (] 51547
HFLY Tt 200 9-HT Class F
il WY LS dudiAER 0z Thils
o e L0 el L0 Ol AT
1] 500, el i 8 T T T ] 18 500,937
P hbgrgen Chage Comemaarc al W ot gape Securdier Tnat J004-C30
[=FLEE ]
s LTELAT N e 0T8T e 0,088
FP A nngan Ch e Cormeman bl M o pape Seturtes Toar M-S
Class B
(£ 100,080 A0 chusr 05,7 e .z 55, 365

The atotsmparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Brimepsl  of Het
Aurs ot Das Az tats FairValus
FIED IRCOME SECLIRITIES (4,505} [oontinued)
UMETED STATES §9.5%) (raatihued)
ASUIT-WACKI D WICURITIES 49 94 (continued)
P Worgan Chade Comeent &l Mort gape Securtie Tnat J008-WHT
Clage BRdl
L BRLOBE S9N dug 0708 1mIN 4% v TS
P yiorgen Chine Comegr ol Mot pape Securtie Trst 200
MFF Oligs [
] 150,088 LES% dur a7 S Eme oy 116,953
F haongen Chase Do o b ort paga Securities Tes 2018
LOOPCaar
0= 10000 RN due L2MS e L &3 sham
PR Commprcisl Mo gape Seturten Trait M1aC did b
L 100,008 L4 dus A 5 0l 54,458
FPRBE Commercial Mo gige Seourtins Trust MILS €37 Class X4
(] ATEME L0 chue 11 50 L 5] Ianm
FHOD Commansl ortgege Seruries Trug J0J0-C0R7 e B
L] ONE0D L 330 3 or LR
PROB Comemamis Momgn Seourmis Trust H0-CORT 0 5 3
1] 514,051 LESH due 05,1 30530 0.3 BEIIS
Lty Mcrtgage Avvet Trust J0 20354 Csag A1
0] WA RN due 02050 0.7 1R ]
Loy Bimath b oot gag e Loen Troen 30849 Said Jad
LD 1 AGTRET 05305 chum L0255 36 Lr e
RASETR Savet Baded feairties Tnat 3007 HEL Class &3
LS EFTUET O R L 28 05, 55
Rebirt Tt T2 8 ARCLH Clanis 6
s 100,000 5.4 duer 1115/ 3e0n ar 57,562
Ml Lyich afenabive Picte fsset Trust Sarlis I00T Q8RS Clan
143
(1] A14.8TF 21N duw LO2S0T (1] VLR
Roliarguin Stundey Benk of Amancs War Lynch Teist 2004009
Class 54
LD L, E5E L% dum 12 ST L L] 19599
Mogrgan Stankey Capdal | 01T ME] Sass €
1] 100,068 41K dus L3 580m [ 101,
Mg Standey Capetal § Trost TO648 0L Cliss K&
0] 108,162 LSO s (381 S48 ol S TH
Nhgrgen Standey Capitel | Trus T016-49512 Cads s
1] LOBSAAT (LRGN due L2/ 54s™ [ 5] BATE
Nlgrgan Stankey Capitel 1 Trust 2017-H1 Class M&
(1] AELIRE L0 chue 06,0 550 ot aamn
Polisigpich Sty Capeil | Truit 301919 i M4
L BAETER (SN due L1ASTEN (%3 Hals
Fatisis Com il Mo gape Seounities Truet 110 1PAC Cles O
LsD N300 AT due L2A S 01 EI0.336
Cptior ree Mortgui Loan Trust 20074 Clas Ll
L] LEAAAME  QIEN A (25T ES Leet e
PIAT Crecit Risk Transfer Truat 200918 Cliss &
1] IERALE RS dueds 2z [ AT
PRET 2071 :ANZ LLE Class A1
(=] AELME LT e 0700 R ] Hiam
PRI 28013 LLC Cag A2
(1] Gl 000 TR due 325 00 iE 151,548
FRALE Seres J0DE-05L 3 Trast Cast 143
] LIRS G0N dur 1R s |
FUALE Saeries 08 ToOHS Trust Class &
LisD IP5RE DA duedsQ5TE L AT
RAGE Sartes MOTEMIC, Tras Claer 817
0] WL LR e 21T ar WT.04Y
Piruliid it H ored £ gty Loan T Te0i-& Chas AF 1
1] 651065 SNl 25T g 5,305
SOF1 Prifesconal Losn Brogram 101 TE LLC Qe B
0] SO0.0RE N due 10,25 0N 11 08035
ool Pt eribonad Losn Py egram JOL T LS Gaj €
LS 250,008 410N dus L1600 s ELET
Soha Trust BO0Y S0HD Tas B
LD TROED  RLTO duse 08,10 3800 (53 BB 331
SrEe 0100 Clas s
L] LI ANRGerLANaTe o8 Ll

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.

93/213



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000O0oonognognoOonod(e27078)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2022
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Prineipsl o of het
Sien gt Dagcri Bz vaty Fair Valus
FEAERD INCORE SECURITIES (39,505} [rantinued)
URETED STATES S0.55) (rantinued)
ARTT-WACH D WITURITIES (88 5040 [continued)
Spruce il Morpege Loan Trst 2020-541 Qs M1
(2] 500,000 2.73% dum 01/20,/5000N 1% ush 50T
Saack e ragtructuny e LLC O a3
[£24] A0ER LN cue GRS ] a3, arh
Sapele Oresk CLO 30161 Lhd. Class &R
LD SOT088  1FF% due 0815 T1EM 11 BE, 187
Taoo Bl Funding LT Class 833
LD ISHE LA due RS LE] LET03%
Tacd Dol Funding LLE Cladi A0
b S LA5K dum 0025 W i e
Tharukdion Hotel Forols Trum 2008 THPT Cuss E
S0 LAME  A5HN dug 11 138w LT 1,351
THL Crgcht Wind River 10181 O Ltd Class B
o SOO000 109N due 07,0 5 a0 Lt 5707
Wl e ol zedd M Grigige Trust J1TCE Ol Wa
LD SOT484 LS duer 06550 (¥ 58,604
LE% Com meroil Mortgage Trust J1TCF Class B
S0 100,000 L5 dus B85S0 ar L0, 374
LG Com maroeid Mcrtgage Trist 301763 Ol 3,
] LAY FEL LA due 0580 [ %] ¥, 05
WBF-Barclayt Commercial Mort gape Trust 290 3-C5% Clad 58
S0 LSETESE  (UBEN due OEL0EEm LT 6645
Uigriaet Pt Thogegh Trust Seres 2071 77 Class &
LD TILEEE  LES due 09,2015 (1] 10EEEE
Wens Securkaetion Trust 2071 A1 Cless MY
ush SO0080 2 due LD/ & ] AF4 T
Wisa P19 Trun® Cladd L
LD BATEONE ION dus 11,2584mm L5 1,941, (38
" nahingror M utual MCnpage Pass Thiugh Derldicutes WIAALT
iy HITHT Trust Dess 141
LD Lrrl T TR0 dum 34257 [ £ B, 05 E
washirgor M utunsl ddiet e ed Cortficated WHAAY Senet
6 HED Teum Ot 18
LED EANESE L3 due 08,2536 L STEEIT
Washingson Mutursl 2a5etBacked Cert @ icates WhISES Senes
06 HES Trusl D 140
1] LIS41M (LA due L0253 L% SE41TE
el ls Fargo Commertial RAorigage Trust J01G-CEY Charr 108
(02¢] THAM LS e 0205 &1 amar
il B e e Pl Ao age Tt 08P CO (hiif M8
1 0435 LE1% due 0715000 [ BLANE
‘wells Fargn Commercisl Morigage Trust F19.C5E (s KA
ST LANTARE DA dus LIRSS 07 TR
wally Fargs Morbgupe Backod Sacoritie ] 006 4818 Tryst Oaps 263
ush A9, 481 2AO% sy LO8IE [T i, T
TOTAL AVSET - BACKED $ECURETEY PN
GOAVERMMENT BOHDS §.29%)
L%, Trsssury Bond
L 1,600,000 L TEN dum TN 1% 1e04, 000
UsD L0068 3N e 0515051 2T 1,347, 288
TOTAL GOVTRMMINT BONDY 289170
PAOR T GAGE BACKE [ SECURITIES (22 4%)
Farwie ks Pool
b 45,15 L3N s 110105 oy aZn, il
LSO LAATOGE  LS0% due a1 14 1,308,187
S0 LISSATH  A00% due 31T 1] L1378, L5
(1] AEAE 200% due 0401 o AT, s
F1] FTRLGEE 200N due 001 e P, 60
L 300,000 LA oy 83,01477 1 LR ETY
LD Y 2 due 0301 o 374, TTH
LD ATLSEE OO dueOE0LS L5 ] ATE, 356
Fracd s Mz G-oid Pool
(1] B9LBET 50N due L1010 8 LI
L) ELo A ] A3 chuss 08T 100540 L¥ d1hat
LSO LER YT 0N due 11010 04 177,587

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued}
February 28, 2022
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
Princlpsl oo het
Currs: Sien gt & Dagcri Az paky Fair Vahm
FIAEDY INCORAE SECLIRITIES (3.500) [ront ety
LINETED STATES (98.55) (rsmtinuand)
PN TGl -IACHE [ ADCURETHS C2A%) fran i)
FrocdeMec Poot
LD SNLAN 200 e 1110 EX ush EELETE
LE NG LB e OT1NT 13 541,374
AR || Poal
5D M3965 250 cue GB/20/5] 1.1 463,673
TOTAL MORTGAGE-RACKED SECLIRITIES. 10,384,877
FOTAL LIKITED STATES [ IR
TOTAL FIAED BCOME VECURITIES {Cost U500 07 505,507 SR
FOTAL INVESTWENTS (Cost LSO 67, 869.583) 0 (L1 5,590 401
CALH AN THER ALSETS IN EXECESS OF LLARILTIES 13 (g LE]
NET ASAETS oot o s FET I

) Ladn Gaeirdy - Dy ddmpt fnm a1 on undir 1846 of th Secur tis Aot of 1550 Thc et may beresedd in
tranactions evempt from et staon, Sypcally o gl e inpRutionsd buper Uinless othens i mdicsted, 1Fae + scurthes o not

condidmpdng ke dhqud
{3} Fiosteg Rata bs of February 20, 2032
{3} Wansble Rete s of February 25, 2037
{8} -Aap Aste ar of Febraery 38, 7IIT

1P Menthhy Dirtribugion Clae: Forward Feraipn Cumeney Exchangs Contracts

Mat Unmalized
Motional  Setclem et Mabionsl Unraakpad L liped & Mgy
Buwy  Counberparty Ampurt  Date Sall Bm i Appredition  [Deprecistion) {Dapreciatian]
B iitwen Brothirs Harniman & ©a sEts  OSRNIT U [T 1 = [ 1
aF QTR ST BNSREHIET UED (4E9GEST) - {18870 {15ETH
LED O PR 2508 O3RN Y [LELTTEG) ] - B
o ] {16771 S0 (11.58%)
1P Gmmd il Dertribetion Clcs Forward Foneign Curmency Exschangs Conviracts

Mt Urrealized
Moticnal  Settlement Natianal Unrealired Unnaalived Apprac stion

Buy__ Counterparty Aumauk Crate E S ot stinn e ci ot |
B OTPR LILEEILER D30T WSD (E0E9TS) s - ICTREC] LS00 {BLTH))
LS00 PR 1738 D3I Y (L9578 S4E - i1
V5 gL 1917200 WED (BLITA)
—

Cumery |s pred
P 1B PR Vi
L2 LS. Dol b

The atctamparyiing notes ane an integral part of these finandial statements.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

ORGAMNIZATION

Roubleline Total Retorn Fund (Ehe “Furd”) B 8 sened trust of the Alkks AM OFshore Fundd, n open-erded unit toust
edablished by & supplernental trust deed dated Felbruary B, 2017 (the “Supplemerta] Trast Deed” |, under the laws of 1he
Cayrman idands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by @ master trost deed dated October 15, 2012 {the “Master
Teudt Deed™), wnder the [5wd of the Cayman HBnds and id lickaied vath the Chanan Blands Manetary Aoty puriusnt
o section S{1}(a) of the Mautual Funds Act (2021 Rewision). The Fund commenced operations on March 30, 2017,

Ther Fund's 353e1s are managed an 2 day-to-cday basis by Nikks AM Glabal Cayman Lisnited (the “Marager”], The Manager
delegates itvedtmert mshagamert dutied to Nikho Assel Maragement Co., Ud., {the “mvestment Munsger ]l The
Irvestment Marager delegates imvestment management cuties 10 Doubletine Capital LP, [the =Sub-Irestiment Manager ],
The admanistration of the Fued is delegped 10 Browen Brothers Harriman & Co. {the *0 dgian” and “Sub-Adminisirator],
a mited partnership organired under the laws of the State of New York,

Brgwen Brothers Harriman & Co. {("88H") has entered into an agreesmsent with State Siree! Corporation ("5tebe Seres™)
urder which State Street will soquire BRH'S Imeestor Services butimess; whidh includes it custody, fund acounting and
administration, trarsfer agency, depositary, foreign exchange, trustee and sacurities lerding services. The transaction is
et 10 bi completed i the thirg quanter of 2022, subject to customary chaling tonditions and regulatony appeovals.

The irveitment objective of the Fund i ta adhiene & mid to koog tenm total returm through income and capital appreciation.
Urder noderal cirourmstances, the Sees Truw dhall irvest ower 50% of its net assets in residential and cormmiancial
morigage-backnd securities, acthmly allocated betwesn agency and non-agercy securities.

Thase investments may include morigage-backed securitios of any maturity or type, indeding those guarantesd by, or
seciged by collateral that i guadarteed by, the United States Goverrenant, its agencies, instrumertadities of spormsoded
corporations, and privately Bsund morgage-backed sequrities rated at the teme of purdhase Aa3 or higher by Moody's or
- o bigher by 58P or of an equivalent rating by any other nationally recogrized statistical rating organization {"NRSRO™)
that hars bean recognined by the LS, Securities and Exchangs Cosrenission of unfated sequities that ae determined by the
Ireestiment Marager of its defegates 1o be of comparable quality. Thess imvestments ako andude, among others, U.S.
Gowernment mongage passabrough securitles, collateralized mortgage obligations, multichss pass-through securities,
peiwate mortgige piss-through securities.

The Series Trust may aluo smvest in short term irvestments, such 05 notes isued by W5, Gowernmert agencers, snd borsds,
delet securities and other fxed income irstruments issuved by U5, Govarnmental or private-secior entitles, or other asset-
backed cbligations, collaterslired loan obligtions, ard obBigstiors of the US Govemment and its agendes,
instumeralities and sponsored corporations,

Tha Senies Trust may ireest in bords of any oredit cuality, induding those that ae at the e of irvestment urmted or
rited BB+ of lower by SEP or Bal or lower by Moody's of of an equivelint rating by sy other NRSRD. Bonds and fixed
income irstruments rated below imeestment grade, of such nstruments that are vnrated and determined by 1he
Irvestment darager of its delegates to be of cormparable quality, are bigh yield, bigh risk bonds, commonly known as “punk
beoris’, The Series Trust may imest up 1o 3 third of its net assets in junk borgds, bank kans and assigravents that are either
rated below investment grage of are urrated but detenmined by the Imvestment Manager o fts delegates 10 be of
comparable gualty, and eredit default swaps of companies in the high yisld urraerse.

The Series Trust may invest a portion of i#s net assets in ineerse floater securities and interest-only and prircipal-onky
Seturities,

Under the terms of the Sepplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean nternateonal Bank and Trust
Company {Cayman ) Emited (the “Trustee™ and the =Administrator” ) is named as Trusies of the fund,

The Menager sppoired Mitsubishi UFl Morgan Stanley Sedurities Co., L3d.1o set as Agent Comparry (the “Agent
Company™] and the Manages appainted Mitsubishi UE] Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Ud. and SMBC Trus: Bark L. to act
i3 Distribustars {the “Distributors™) of Unitsin Japan.
SUPAVUARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Furd i an Irnstdimet Company thit followns the accounting and reporting guidance in FASS Acrounting Standards
Codficatson 346

L of Estimares

The srcomparying fnandial statements have been prepared in sctordance with acoounting prnciples genirally accepted in
the United States of Arerica {705 GAAR™)
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SUTARAARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd])

U of Estrmirbes (continued)

The preparation of finandal statements in actordance with LS. GAAP requires the Fund’s management to make extimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and disdosures of contingent assets and
liabiities at the date of the firancial staterments and the reported amouwnts of rewerues and expenses during the reparting
periact, Actual results, inchucing the ulterate amount resized upon the sle of far valued Irsestments, could differ from
those estimates and wmich differences may be significant.

Bz af Accounting

Seourity and contraciual transactions are meconded on a tradgefcontract-date basis, interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any appliceble withholding tax. Interest expense and other expenses are recorded on an accrual
bask, Reslieed gains and losses from seouity iransactions are computed on the basis of the serage cost of the securnities
sold or covered, Chapges in the waluation of instmems are recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
mppreciation o deprecation,

wirhnrtion of ivedmenis

Bords and other debt seourities, inchiding restricted securities (other than short-term obligations but Including lkted
istues) are fair wablued & thedr last sale prioe in the princips] maket in which such secwrities ane nonmally traded, on the
bask of wabuations fumished by 2 pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Imestment Manager, or if no sake
has ocourned, the bid price on the valuation date as peovided by beolars who are rracket makers in the securitie s All debs
securities with bess than 12 months o maturity date, in principle shall be fair valued vsing an amonized o effected by an
effective yield accumulsted amadtization method 10 their maturity date with adjustments based on comparion with
market prices as recuired,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disdlosures under LS. GAAR, the Fund
ditchoses the fair value of its imestments in a bisrardhy thet pricritizes the inputs to wlustion technigues used to measure
the fair value, The Merarchy gives tha highest priority o valuations based upon unaciusted quoted prices in actiee markets
for identical ateit or labilities {Leved 1 measurement) and the Iowest priority 1o valuatiors baded upon unobtervable
inputs that are significant 1o the valuation (Level 3 measuremonts). The puidance establishes three levels of the falr value
hicrarchy as follows:

*  Level 1 = inputs that reflest unedjusted quoted prices n active markets for identical imcestmers that the Fung
Irers e by bee Bociess at the Fredsunement divte;

®  Level 3 = imputs other than quoted prices that are signifiam and observable for the asset o labiiy either
direcily or indirectly, indhuding inputs in markets that are not considerned to be active;

L Lewed 3 = inputs that are sgnificent and uncbservable,

Impadts are used in applying the vars valuation techricues ang broadly refer 1o the assmplions they market paticipants
usn to make vahuation cecikons, nduding assumplions about risk, inputsmay include price infoomation, specific and broad
ot dina, liguicity statistics, and othes factors, A financial instrumer’s level within the fair value Merarchy 5 based upon
thee loverst level of ary input that s slgnificant to the fair value messuement. However, the detenranation of what
corstitules "observable™ recuires sigrificant pudgment by the investment Manager. The investmery Mandger considers
obsenable data to be market data which s readily swailable, regularly distrinded or vpdated, reliable and veriflable, not
propristany, and proviced by independent ssurces that are sctively involved m the reevant market, The categorication of 2
fimancial irstruement within the hierarchy b based vpon the pridng trarsparency of the instumant and does ot Pecessanly
correspond 10 Ehe investmem Manager's paroeived sk of that instrument.

It whose vabues are basbd on the Gudted marke! prces in Bctive imarkets, and thtefore dlassifiad within Level 3,
woudd incucle acthvielly traded ecublies, cerfain LS, gowernmont and soeereign obligetions, and cortain assed-backed
secufities and colliteralined mortgoge obligateons, The Ireesament Marager would not adjust the quated price for such
Insthumens, sven in stuations where the Fund held o large position ard 3 sale could reasonably impact the quated price.

Ireestmars that troce in markets that are pot corsidenad 10 be adtive, bul are walued based on guoted market prces,
desler quotations or altermetive pricing sources supporied by observable inparts ane classified within Lewd 2. These inclhude
imestmeni-grace debt seourities, shon-tenm evestments and forward foresgn cumency excharge conbracts and may abo
include certain aset-backed seourities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As Level 2 invesiments inchude positions
that are rot traded an active markets andfor are subject to transler restrictions, valuaticns may be adpsted to reflect
illiguidity andfor non transfierabiity, whichare generally based on @allable market information.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SURMNAIRY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd)

Valurtion of imadmenis fooatimued)

Iresstimers cassified within Level 3 hawe significant unobservable inpauts, 3s they would tade infreguently, Level 3
instemers would inchude certaln asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As obserable prices are
not svailable for those seourities, the Fund would use valuation techriques o deriee The Fair valos,

The inputs or methodology Lsed Tor valuing securitins are not necessarlly an Indication of the risk amodated with irvesting
in those seourities,

The following table presents the fimandal inst ruments cardied on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
lovel within the valuation hinrarchy as of Febeuary 28, 2022, Further dassifimtions of the financial insiruments are
presented in the Portfolio of imeestments.

Brvets st Fair Valus Fair Valus st
Levell Levedd Level 8 February 3, 05
Fiuid I LEn - [} 45, 504,441 [E.Au} = (X<} 45,504,441
Forward Foregn Currency
Ewph: Contras = E!-_B = 5-!-3_
Tetsd (3] - ] &5, 525,079 =0 - L] 45, 595,079
Lishiie: a2 Fair Valie Fair Valus
Larved 1 Lol Level® Fobruany 2, 2
Forward Foregn Cuerency
Entharps Corfrmis (¥ ) - [ x ] 96, 397 (X7 - LD S5, 397
Total [T x [E=4] N.ET [0 = (K] 95397

Curing the year ended Febmary 28, H2¥, the were no transfess in or out of Lewel 3. The Fund's policy is 10 determine
levellng dnid ideis ol tranafers a3 at b yedr end date

Foreign Currendy Transfrtion

Asgats and abilities held in ourrendes other than United States Oollar {“US0° or the *Functional Cumrency”] are translated
to £k Furctional Currency #1 the rage of HﬂHI'F Fl'Mili’ns at the financial staterment date incorme and ENRETTEL are
translated at the rate of exchange provailing at the date on which the income or exponse is inournecl Realized and
urealined gaint and kties ariting on forsgn currency tramactiond ane induded in the Statement of Operations in the
i i wehich they oo,

The Furnd doos not iolate that portion of the rewults of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
imestmen s from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities beld. Such fluchations ane induded
with tho ret realized and vorealized gain or lows from investments,

Income Toxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman islands, there ane no incomes, withholding, capital gairs or other tazes payable by
the Fund, in certain jurisdictions ather than the Cayrmsn islands, foreign tanes may be withheld 81 source on dividends and
inerest received by the Furd, Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurisceetions gererally will be exerpt from freign
incerme of withholding taces at source. The Fund infends to conduct its aff s dudh that i will not be subjest tonmcome tax
i @y jurrshciion, As 8 nesull, o provision for incorme taxes hes been mrade in the financial statements. Unitholoers may
b tamed on their proportionate share of the Fund’s (e basi incoeme based on their indhidusl crcumitences.

The Fund follows the sutht stive guidance on acounting for and disdosure of uncertainty in fax poditions [Finarcial
Accouning Sandards Board ["FASE") - Acoounting Standards Codification 740, wheth reguires the Marager to detenrane
whelher & tin poiition of the Fund i more Ekely than 1ot fo be sstained upon examination by the applicable taxing
suthority, mcluding reselution of ary related appeals or itigation processes, based on the technical meriss of the position,
Fow tax ponitions meeting the mare [ely than not threshold, the tax bmefit recogniced in the firendal statements is
recuced by the langest Berefit that has & greater than fifty peroent Bkelihosd of bewng realived upon ullimate set therent
with the relevard taxing authority. The Mansger has determined that there i4 minimal of ro effect on the financial
staternerts being under this autheditative puidence,

Forward Fareign Curmemcy Excfange Controcts

The Fund may entex into forward forsign aarenty exchange contracts to bedge agairs foreign currensy eachange rate
risks on all or @ portion of non-USD denomirated imvesiments of for efficient portfolio mansgement purposes, When
ertering into & forward fonegn currency exchange conradt, the Fund agress to receive of deliver & fioed quantity of
lorsign currency for an agreed-upan price on an agreed future date. These contracts sre valued daily, and the Furd's net
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

SURMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continucd)

Forwnd Foneign Cunmerrey Exchramge Contrmets (comlio od)

eouity therein, repretenting unreslioed um'::i!tim.l'ldtpmcimi:m] on the cormracts ot mestuned by the difference
between the foreand foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forvard rates atthe
reporting date, it induded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realinesd and unrealiced gains and losses ane inchuded
inthe Statement of Operations

These irstruments irmvotve market risk, oredit risk, or both kirds of risks, in mecess of the amownt recogniped in the
Staterment of Assets and Lisbilities. Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the tenms of their
comracts and from moverment in ourrency and securities values and imerest rates. 0 addition to the Qass level hedging,
the Fund had realized loss of USS 1,326 on 6 forward foreign ourrendy enchange corbracis during the year with an average
nationa of USD 67,160 and an average term to matunity of 10 days, The Fund had net realized foss of US0 222,001 on 37
forward forsign curmency exchange comracts held at the 18y Monthly Distribution Class Medged hevel during the year with
an average notional of LSS 3,015,726 and an average tenm to maturity of 24 days, The Fund also had realized loss of USD
2 TTE,232 on 38 forward foreign cumency exchange contracts held at the 27 Semi-Arnual Cistribution Class Hedged level
during the year with an swrage notional of LSD 19,584,700 and an average teom to maturity of 28 days.

While all or substantially all of the assets of the Fund may be held in LS. Bollars, it s imended for the Furd 1o enter into
hedging arrangemaents for the benefis of 57 Monthly Distribution Class Units and 177 Semi-Annus] Distribution Class Lnits,
whach are denominated in Yan Those arrangements will be to hecge against adverse movements of the currency of
dencmination of the imestments in the Series Trust relative 10 Yen Any profits, gains, kosses, costs, income and
expendiiure avsochated with such hedging arrangements will be borme by each dass,

For the yesr ended February 3, 2022, the noticnal esposure on the JFY Monthly Distribution Qass Units and JFY Sami-
Annal Sistribution Class Urits forward ourmency exchange contracts approdmated the average net assets for each dass
beang net long JPY and shorl USD, Open contracts i year end are disclsed in the Fortfolio of tmeestments.

Coath and Fareign Currency
Cash and foreign ourrency comprises all csrnen oy held with Browan Srothers Hariman & Co., and owernight and other thort
btl"rl'lﬁ-!l:b‘l‘l!l‘l‘tl with other finarcial institutions.,

The met afsets of the Fund ane divided into JPY Monthly Distribution Clas Units, JPY Semi-nnual Distribution Class Lnits,
U0 Monthly Cistribution Class Units and USD Semi-Anmual Cistribution Clas Units, The Units are derominsted in Urited
States Dollar and Japsnese Yen 1PY Monthly Distibution Qass Units, 1Py Seri-Anmual Distribution Oass Units, USD
et hily Distribudion Class Units srd USD Serri-Arsual Distritution Class Urits are available 1o an dligibde mvestor who is
any peron, coaporation of entity which it not i) a citizen or resident of the LS, a partrership organined or existing in the
L5, or any corporation, trust of ather emity ofgatized under the laws of or saisting in the US; (8] person o entity resident
or domicled in the Cayrman islands {exduding any objed of a charitable trust or powser or an exempbed o non-nesicdert
Cayrran Wlands comparty]: {iii] unable 10 subseribe for or Rold Units without vislating applicable liees, or (Fd] & costodian,
nomine, of trustes for any perion, conporation o entity described in (1) to i} abowe.

The Manager may determing 1o issue one or more clisses of Units of the Fund without prior natios 1o or written consent of
the Unithakdird.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

LIS [comtinued)

All of the net assets attribatable to JPY Monthly Distribution Class Unins, [PY Semi-anrual Distribution Class Urits Class,
USD Manthly Destribution Class Units ardd USD Semi-Annual Distr bution Class Units, ane held by two Unitholders,

I Whasthly 1 Semi-Bars] UISE Manthiy USD Sam kAl
Eeerbagion Clare B tribution Has Birtribastion Claae Bixerbation Clace Total Funl

Balance o Febnasry 1, 000 S0 4,400 USD B 040,415 T TTET Y WD 1S TO0ENE  USD BLOSS AN
Subser gt ions duning the year 5476, T4h 237,591 306,348 53,532 2,700,217
Rdamptiong cheing the poi [671,265) [3.068,033] (LTE1.559) [8.596,434] (14050, 33L)
Cutributrore (S 455) [156,371) (B2783) (E97.869) [55d,0010)
Hat dixriniem in fot BEset |

remlting from operations [517,6465) [AO5940%] [HaaT [HTEATE [T, 890
et At ot Febeuary 38, 7027 L0 4.632443 L0 2T B 197 LD 73405 L0 11407 343 A6, 27054
Bom b of Lin 81 @ i o

Februmry 38, 2021 &0.4%1 ¥¥2 08 G54 10076, 140 LA06. 5T
Uit e durirgg tha yesr 1708 L5268 30512 E5867 L6 2w
Uiz rindipim e charig the pee (7,844 [4.248) (LTn T (20065} {L040,893)
Humber of Lnits © isue o

Februmny 28, 2022 58,561 20, 86 242038 1L121.150 LTEL13E
en Acunt Viskay pr Uinit st

Fahruary 28, 2022 ush TR0 D BLed LD A usD 019

Subseriptions for Umits

IP¥ Maonthly Distribution Class Urits and S0 Semi-hnnual Distribution Class Units were first isved 2 an iritial issue price
of JPY 10000 per Unit. The mirémum irfial subscription for J0Y Monthly Distribution Clast Units and 10¥ Semi-anrival
Distribution Class Urits per subscriber is 1 Unit or mace, and in multiples of 1Units thereafer.

A0 Monthly Sistribution Class Units and USS Semi-annual Distribution Clazs Units wene first ishued at an iritial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Urit. The mirkmam initisl subscription for USD Marthly Distribution Clase Uil snd USD Semi-Snru sl
Bistribution Class Units per subscriber i 10 Urits or more, and in muliples of 1 Unit thereafter,

The Marager may wane of change the minimem nitial ard additional subseription amounts set forth above i its sole
diseretion froem time 1o time

Linit Redemplion

Thir Fund recognines redemplions in accordarse with the suthoritative guidance on distinguishing Beblities from ecuity.
Redernpiions, whether expressed a3 United Ststes Dollar, panese Yen of Units, are recognioed a3 Esbilities when each of
the Japanese Yen ard United Siates Dollar Unil amourts reguested in the redemption notice becomes fioes, which
gerirally miay becud either ot the Sime of the receapt of the natice, of on the last day of & fiszal year, dipending on the
natire of the fetuest. As & result, redemptions paid after the end of the pear, but bined upan year end net 35es ane
reflected @ redemptions payable @1 Februery 38, 2022, There were USD 41L180 for United States Dolar Units of
redemptiond payable 22 5t Februsty 28, 2022 inchided a3 Payable fod Urits redesmed it the S2atement of Asiets and
Liabilities.

Regurchesé af Units
Urits ey be repurchased o the option of Unitholders on sach Valustion Day, or sudh other day of days as the Manages
miry frowm tiene o time deter mine in respect of the Series Toust ("Repurchase Gay™).

Uritholders wishing ta have Units repurchased must send a complebed Repurchase Notice to the Cistributors io 85 1o be
received by the Distributars mo later then 300 pom. [Tokyo firse) on the rebevant Reporchase Day, The Debabutors will
send the complieted Repurchase Notices 1o the Sub-Adminisiratod by no kter than E-00 pon. | Tokyo time) on the relevant
Repurdhase Doy of by such other tiere 84 the Sub-Administralor may in Sny particols cate determine

15 tihe releeant Repurdhade Notioe it not received by the Sub-Administrator by the relevart time, the Repurchane Modice will
be beld over wntil the pext iollowing Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notkce & received ard Urits will then be
redemed ot the releant repurchsse price applicslde on that Repuedhase Doy,

& Repunchiie Notice, once ghaen, B infesocable.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

LIS |comtinued)

Compalsory Redempiion

Irvthe everd that the Trustes of the Manager shall detenmine that ary Units of any dass of a Series Trust ane bang held by
of for the benefit of @ person who is not an Eligible imvestor for such Serles Trust or that such holding would cavso the
Truest or the Sevies Truit (o be required to register, be subject to taw o vicdate the laws of any urisdiction, or if the Trustee
or the Manages has neason to doulbt tha kegitimacy of the souron of monies used 10 fund the ubsoription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reazon {which may not be disdoted by the Tnstes or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trsstes or the Manager considers appropeiate at its abschute discretion hadng regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the: relevart Class or the Uritholders of the Series Trust as 2 whole, then the Manager, after cormultation with the Trustes,
mary direct she holder thereod 1o sell such Urits within 10 days and prosdde 1o the Trustes arg the Manager evidenge of
such sale, failing which the Merager may nedesm such Linis,

Temination of the Furnd
Upon termination, the Marager 48 realize all the assets of the Fung, and after paying out or retaining adequate prosision
for all liabilitics properly peyable and retaining provision for the costs of the termiration, the Trustes shall distribute the
proceec of that resliration to the Unitholders proportionately 1o their respective interests in the Furd & of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Dstribations to Unitholders

The Marager may, from time bo time, in 13 sole discnetion, dedlene distributions from September 201 7. Distribution will be
dieclared on sach Business Day immediately prior to the Ex-Distribition Cate for 16 and US0 Digtribution Class Units or
such other date o dates a3 the Menager may from time 1o Sme determine in espect of the Sedes Trost | "Distribution
Record Date”} and caloulated on the fifieenth (15th) day of each month for Morthly Cistribution Class Units and the
fiftmertth [15th) day of March and September of each yesr for Semi-Annual Distibution Qlass Units [ such day i not a
Basiness Day, then on the following Susiness Cay), or such other date or dates in each month as the Manager may from
tirme to time determing in respect of the Series Trest ("Ex-Distribution Date”]. Distribution Period is a pericd commencing
from the calencar day following the preceding Distribution Record Cote and ending on and kndluding the Distribution
Record Date. The distribuions will be paid on the rdevarm Distribution Payment Cate, provided that such amourt (i any}
dedared with respect to the refevant Gass of Units in respect of the applicable Dist ribution Pesicd shall only be peid out of
the Seriet Trusts net income, realived and vnrsalived capital gaire and any distributable funds of the Series Toust
attributable fo such Class of Units s determined by the Manager.

The declaration of distributions to Unitholders redueces the Class Leve Net Asset Value per Unit without any cormesponcing
charge in the rumber of (Rass Livel Urits por Unitholder. This retults in a Unitholder's overall ireestment in the Fund
beang rechiced, in addition, any cisiributions during a period which are in excess of the Fund’s net ncrease in net assets
resatting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being refurn of capital.

The amount of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in i3 role discretion, and no representation or
puil rdrt ek i mnade that & distribution will b made in resped! of each o sy Bistribution Period.

Copilaiination

The Net Asset Vahue per Uril is caloulated for each Desling Day {each business day, cowrerendng an March 30, 2007, or
sch other day of days a5 the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Fund alo a (Svalustion Day®), by
divicing the diff erenoe in vabue between the Fund's assets and Babilizies (induding scorued fee and expenses of the Fund)
by the nurrber of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipul that the ber of Urits i0 be iwued in the Fund shall be unlimied as the Manager shall
determing and shall be wishout par value,

DERIVATIVE FINARCIAL INSTRUBENTS

Accouniang Stardard Cogiflcation {ASC] 815-10-50 requines disclosures about derivabae nsinaments and hecging acthiees,
|E resmires 1at the Fund disclose: ] Paw and why a0 &ntity wies defiedtinn® nstnuments, b] bow dervative irdtruments and
related hedged items are accointed for and ¢ how derbatiee instruments and selated hedged itens affect an entity's
finarcial position, finerssl performanoe snd cash o

Thee Fund trarmacts forwand derivatie Frstruments primanly for hedging purpotes with esch instrument™s primary risk

wposune breing foreign exchange rek. The foreard foreigrn ourtenoy exchange comracs held by the Fund do not gualify as
hedges for sotounting purpases under the regquirements of ASCA15.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

DERMATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

That fair value of these derkative instruments is indluded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair
vahe reflected as realined gains/(Rosses] or met change in unnealined apps eciation/[depresiation) on dervatives within the
Staternent of Operations (Note 2],

The Fund may enfer info an intemational Swaps and Derbatke Assodation, Inc Master Agreoment {71504 Masier
Agresment”] with s counterparties an order to mitigre counienparty risk, The SDA Masier Agreement is typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-laseral tenrs and conditions for all subsequent deriatie
transastions. The IS04 Masier Agreement allows far the petting of all aenounts awed 19 of due from courbpany into @
singhe net payment if a crecit evert or defaull should ccour,

At Febeuary 28, 2022 the Furd had entered into the following dervatiee 2911 by counterparty net of smounts s ilable
Tor offset under o Master Metteng Agresarent ["MRA™) and net of sny collaterall recenned by the Fund

Derbestiva fisrets  Deshvativesr Hen-cath tuh Poet fmenare of
Countorparty Sulbjuct to 3 WP dvailabls fior Offet Collateral Aeceived Colfatoral Recahasl Derivative daren
Brownbroth Fammn B Ga. LG0 IR0 = LD =LED =D ]
amEE - L fea8)__ - - =
Total [T 630 U5 636} LSD — U0 —uso 2

At Febeuary 28, 2022 the Fund had entered into the foliowing derhvattee Rabilities by colnterparty net of amounts saibible
for offset Lunder a M3 A and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund

D arwtive Tt fumpsant of
Lisbsfiet Dt M h Cuik Derkative
= Pty Sabjoct to s MNA Awvailabls For Offist Collatersl Madged Collstaral Madied Liabiliias
anes (1] a5 MILED (EMELISD = L0 =L 24,761
Tots! Um  wamui [836) 050 —us0 TR
L Matameunt gdae the n e aesours bliayabie from S v I the myens of defilt

At February 28, 20F2 the Furd had entered into the following derratives:

At Darhvatiei Liability B rivisthota
Dbt Slwbem ent StetEmaEnt
Hat Azccarbad For an of Az ot and ef Aizats and
Medging bnitram ants Lakilkias Losation Fair Valug Lighliting Locstion Fair Valug
Farvoard fargign durnsnsy  Linngdioed agsfei &ion Livaaalized dapr st ibn
anchange contracty o Forward foreigr onforward foregn
N Currency Pisk ] L e y i Charmpe LESTE B3N  cwrreniy aaxchange usm [ 2|
contracts ok rict §

The effect of derivative instruments on the Staterment of Operations for the year ended February 28, 2002

Chisnge in Urraabied
Lacation of Foslired Appradistion or
Digribrativonr Mot Sccountad Giadin o [Loae) Gain or {Loar) {Depraciation) an
for 31 Hadging Instruments o et on Dervatbad Derkeatives
et reniwed lasses onforwand Eomign
Farward foreign aurmency OEveny exchange Corran s
wachinge contbracts charpe n uneealired appracansn on lore i d
{Curnency Rist| foeign curvency machango codiracs [1.1] {3.199.599) _Lmn 07,740

TANAGEMENT FEES

The mg!ri!-!ﬁ‘ﬂl!d b recsive cut of the assets of the Series Trust 8 managemenrt fee of & 018l up o 068X per annum
0.5 per anrum in respact of fee for the Marager, (L¥5% per annum of the Set Asset Value up to USD &80 million and
225 par annurr of the et Astet Walue dwer USD SO0 million in nespect of fee for {1 imedtment Marager, and DA03 per
annuen of the Met Asset Value up 1o LSD 200 rrillicn and 0355 per anrwum of the Ket Asset Vabue over USE 280 million in
et of fer for the Sub-irvestmrt Manager) of the Net Asset Vidue scomed an, and caloulates a3 a8, each Valuation
Cray and payable monthly in amears in addition, the Marager is alto entithed to be reimbursed out of the sutets of the
Series Tiust for Ay expenied incurred b'f i1 in 1he proper performance & i powerd snd duties 85 permitled under the
Matter Tnat Decd, Curing the year enced Fobruary 28, 2022, the Manager comned fees of USD 363,689, of which Uss
22,406 18 44ill sutstancing a1 of Februsty 28, 2072,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FAANAGEMENT FEES [continued)

The Manager will pay the fees of the imvestmert Marager ot of Bs foes, The Imvestment Manager will be resporsibde for
paying the fees of the Sub-imaestment Manager and any of the Irvestment Manages's delegates or olher parties appoimed
lbey £ imyestmerd Manager to perform its functions in respect of the Series Trus,

CUSTODAN AND SUIB-ADRIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The fund has a custody and accounting agreemart with Brown Brothers Haniman & Co. (the “Custodian™ and “Sub-
Administrator” ) for which the Cistodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total svsets and trardaction
whume

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator s entitled 1o recobee out of the assets of the Seres Trust an adminkiration foe
{inchuding transfer agerd fioe) caloulated based on the et Asset Value as at cadh Valuation Day at the following anrual
rate

- Q0P ¥ up to fand including] LS 250 million;

- DLDE¥ up to (and including] LSD SO0 million;

- L0 ower LS5 SO0 million,

Such administration fee i+ payable monthly in arrears, and subgect 1o the mirimem annual fee of USD 0,000, The Sub.
Administrator i alio entitled toreoeine out of the assets of the Series Trust fees for cuntency adminisirstion and execution
services at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Valie of the relevant Unit @ass, sibject to the minimum anrual
fee of USE 50,000, In addition, the Custodian and Sub-Adminiztrator i alio entitled o receie customary safekeeping fees
and transaction charges. All cut-of pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by the
Seriet Trust During the year snded Febosary 28, 2022, the Custodian esrned fee of LSO 97 084, of which USD 13,461 i
still cartstanding as of February 38, 2002,

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustes b enditled 1o receive o1t of the amets of the Series Trust a combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per anrum of
the ket Asted Value accroed on, and calculated 2% at each Vahuation Day and payable quarterdy in amears, swbject to @
minimum annual fer of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 28, 2022, the Trustee carned fees of USD 15,000, of
whiich WA2'9, 143 is still outstanding as of February 28, 20232,

AGENT CONIPARNYTS FEES

The Agent Company i entitbed 10 neosiee out of the assets of the Series Trust a foe 3t the rate of 0.02% per anfum of the
Net Asset Value acorued on, and cafculated as at, sach Valuation Day and payable cuarterly in armears, During thie yrar
ended February 28, 1022, the Agent camed fiees of USD 10,697, of which USD 1,534 s still outstanding a% of February 28,
202

Thi Distributon ane entitled to receive cut of the stsets of the Seres Trust & fee ot the rate of 0.60% per anowm of the ke
Asset Value accrued an, and caleulsted as ot each Valution Dy and payable quarterly in arrears. During the yesr ended
February 28, X122, the Distributors earned fees of USD 300, 502, of which WS0 5,705 i still outsdanding o4 of February 28,
20RE

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

Thi: costs and expanies in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, 1ogeiher
with the establithment of the Tnat, induding the costs and esperdes of praparding and printing any prodpecius or
explanatory brochures required, were estirated g Burch to amount fo spproximately USD 140,000, Sudh costs and
eapernes will be amortined within the first fiee (5] finencial years of the Series Trust unless the Trostee dedides that some
wther method shell be applied, The Administrator recsives USD 1500 per anrum Tor FATCA /| CRS complianci serdos.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT

The Fund's actiities papose it to a warinty of fanandal risks: market risk [induding price risk, interest rate risk, and ourrency
risk), eredit risk ang liguidity sk,

Marked Higk
Al rvestiments present a risk of loss of capizal, The Imvestment Manager moderates this risk through a carefiul selection of
securities and other firendial instruments.

Thee Furd’s imeestment management prooess i described @ dode 1. The primary determirant of the Fund's ability 1o mest
its objectcae of mid 1o long tenm capital appreciation while eaming ircoma Is dependent on the perormarce of the
irmmestmaent in the residential and commsrcial mortgagebacked seourities.

The walues of the Fund’s imvestments ane affected by a number of factors, indheding but not limited to, dhanges in the wider
economy, finandal ard cumercy markets, foreign currency exchange rates, Inferest rte movements and orecit ratings of
debt istuers. The Fund enters into forward contracts which o vanying degrees represent a market risk in excess of the
amaunt refleched on the Fund's Statement of Adsets and Lishilitie. The notions amount of the contract FEprEdents ihe
extent of the fund’s participation in these finandial imstruments. Market risks associated with such contracts arise due to
the persiblle manernents in foreign aurenty Bnchin ge fatis underlying theie st ruaments,

Orther market snd oredit riske indude the posibility that there may be an illiquid merket for the contracts, that the dhange
in thie value of the coMract may not directly corredate with charges in the value of the undeslying currendes or that the
counterparty b o forwand contract defaulis on its cbligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
eaposune to loss due to courterpanty non- parformance on open fuiures, forwards, veap and optiens cortracts s limited 1o
the urrealized appeecistion irherent in such financial inttrumersts which are recogrized in the SSaternent of Assets and
Liaklities.

s el -Backed £ curilitd ifvestmenl sk

Adpet-backed tecurities imestrnent have the risk thet bommowers may defach on the obligations thet underie the st
backed security and that, during periods of falling imerest rat es, dnel-backed secuities may be caled or prepaid, which
iy result in the Serie Trust hoding to reinvest procesdd in other irvestments ot a loweer interest rate, ard the risk that
the impainrent of the value of the collateral undadying 8 seourity in which the Series Trust irmests [due, Tor exerple, to
nor-payrment of loans] will result in @ recuction in the value of the seourity.

Concentralion risk

The Series Trust miy irvest substontislly in bonds Bsued by US. agencies in accordarce with ils principal ireestment
strategies, Becavie tuch wecurities are Bsued by a limited number of govemment agendies, any actual or poterdial
disruption to thote sgencied could present & sk to the Sedes Trost. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mas, which are other
powmmment -sponsored issuers of morgage-back securities simillar to thowr guaranteed by Ginnic Mae, suffered sudh a
disruption in the mofigage oridis of 2007 - 7008 and were placed under federal conderestorship ot that time Ganmie Mae
securities, unlike those of Facnie Mae and Freddie Mac, are backed bey the foll faith and oedit of the US. government and
sfe subject to the rishs of WS government securities. Similar 1o other e, charges 1o the finandal condition of onedit
rating of the UA government may cause the value of the Series Trest's exposure 1o UUS agencies seourities to dedine.

Mo rigage -bocked securities rigk

Morigoge-backed securities represent imterests in “pools” of mortgages and sne subject to credit, inteness rate,
prepaymient and edension ek, Morigage-backed wecurities react differently to changes ininforest rate than other bonds
and the prices of mortgage-backed secunities may neflect adverse economic and market conditions. Small movemernts in
inieeest rates [both increases snd decreases] may quickly snd signilicanly redeoe the value of oerlain monEge-boced
weruditien. Default of bankruptoy of & courterparty to 8 fo-be-announced iremisction would expote the Seris Tros 16
peossilde o,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINAMCLAL REE MANAGEMENT [rontinued)

Mortgage-reloeted and Other Assel-Bocked Securitres risk

The Fund may imeest in mongage-related and other asset-backed securities that diectly or indirecily represent a
participation in, or ane secured by and payable from, loars on real property, Mortgzge-related seouities ane oreated from
pock of residential or commaercial morgage loar, inchading mortgage losrs mrade by tavings ard loan institutions,
morigage bankers, commercial banks and others. These securitins provide a manthly payment which consists of bath
interest and principal, interest may be determined by fied or adjustable retes. The rate of prepayments on underbying
morigages will affect the price and volatility of 3 morgage-related seaurity, and may hawe the offect of shoriening or
wdending the effective duration of the seourity relative 10 what was anticipated at the time of purchese. The fimely
payment of prindpal and imerest of cortain mortgage-related seourities s guarantesd with the full faith ard credit of the
US Gowemment, Pool created and guaanteed by nong ental i including  govennment < ponsoned
corporations, may be supported by vanious forms of insurance or guarantees, but there can be ro asserance that privaie
inturers o guarantors can meet their cbligations urder the insurance polides or guarariee arrangemonts. Many of the
risks of irvesting in mortgagerelated securities secured by commencial mortgage loans reflect the effects of local ang
other economic conditioms on real estate markets, the ability of terants to make lease pagments, and the ability of a
property to athract and netain tenants.

Credit Hitk

Cregit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would inour if the counterparties or issuers of debt seounities falled
tor perform pursuant 1o the terms of their obligations to the Furd. For excharge-traded montescty, the exchangs acts a3 the
counterparty to specific transaciions mnd, therefore, besrs the sk of defvery to ard from coumerparties of specific
posititns, The Funds managernent does nat consider that onedit rivk related fo open derfvatine contracts will hinee material
atverse effect on the firarcial condition of the fund

Although the Marager morfton the Custodian and believes it 10 be an sppropeiat e custodian, there is po guarantee thet
thit or ary custodian that the fund may wie from time to time, will not become nwbent, which could lesd to losses for
the Fund,

While batih the LS, Bankrugtcy Code and the Securities irmoestor Protection Azt of 1970 seek to protect austomer propeny
in the eeerd of & failure, inschency or Bquidation of &n inttitution, theve i2 no cortainty that, in the event of a fadure of 2n
institution that has custady of Furd assets, the Fund would not inour |losses due to it isets being urdnsilsbie for 8 period
of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a singhe
irstftution, sush lossed could be sgrificant and could matetially impair the ability of the Furd to achisve its irestment
objective. The Fund is sbject 1o credit rish 1o the extent that this imstitution may be unable to fulfill &1 obligations to repay
DTS cwed.

Liguaiafily fisk
Irmeestors should be aware that the value of Units might fall a5 well as rise. investment in the Fund involves a degree of risk,
these can be no dsburance that the Fund's irmvestenent objective will be sdhieved.

The Furd it experied to daily repurchase of s Units bul mansgerment befieves thet the Fund hes sufSider resources to
meet the presemt and foreseeabde meeds of its business operations and, if necessary, the Bouidity to fund repurchases and
pchieve & mbrke! padition appropriately reflecticg o amaller capitel base. This podition is monitdred confinuslly by
mumagament to ensure that the Fund has the ability 1o mee1 ity obligations,

Currenacy Risk

Thee Fund kalds monetary snd fon-moretary sisets and inours monetary ond non-monetsry liabfitie. denominated in
ourrEndies other tham LUSEL the Functioral Currency. it is therefore exposed 10 cummeney risk, i the vabue of the assets and
liabilities dencminated in other cummencies ("ron-LEDT) will Aucteste cue 1o dhanges Bn excharge rates. The Fund maey
erihiy fne cutfery hidging ransactions from time 1o time in orcer b limit its exposure to cunnerey fisk.

The imvestirent mansger monitors the Fund's currency exposure on a daily basis.

LB Beplecement Ritk
Many finardal instruments wse of may use 8 floating rete based on Lendon Interbenk Offered Rate [CLIBOR"), the offered
rate & which major Enternational barks can obtsin wholessle, unseasred funding. UBOR may be & sigrificart factor in
determining the Fund's payment obligatiors vnder 8 derfative irmesiment, the cost of firending fo the Fund o an
imestmen t's value or return to the Fund, and may be wed in other ways that affect the Fund's inwestment performanoe.
The United Kirgoor's Finarcial Conduct Muihority anndunced & phase out of LHBOR. Although many LIBOR rates were
phasid out by the end of 20231, a selettion of widely wed LISD LIBOR rates wall continue 10 be publithed through June 2023
i e 1o assast wath the trardition.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2022

FINANCLAL RESKE MANAGEMENT [continued)

LI e fmeerment Risk foontinued]

The Fund may be exposed to finandal indtrumernts tied to LIB0R fo determine payment olbdigations, firending terms,
hedging arateges or Peetment value, The tranmition proces sway from LBOR eight lead to incressed volatility and
iligquidity in markets for, and reduce the effectiveness of new hedges placed against, irtroments whode terms cunrerly
inchade LIBOR, The ultimate effect of the LBOR transition pracess isnat expecied to be material 1o the Fund

Othr ik

In 2020, the COVID-19 owtbreak was dedared & pandemic by the World Health Organization. The situation is dynamic with
whrious citie and courtried around the world eeponding in different wayd 10 address the outbreak, The cipid devslopament
and fhuidity of this situation prechudes any prediction as its wlfimate smpact, which may have a continued adwerse impac
on econamic ard market conditions and ﬁmlmﬂfmmk!mﬂ.

The Trustee ard Irvestmentd Mardger sre monitinng deslopments eediting to COVID-19 snd e wordingting 1heir
operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global healih orgarizations,
relevant gowernments, and general pandemic nesponse best praclioes.

O Febw uary 24, 2022, Aussis lsundbed a military iressicn mto Lirsine. Russia®s invasion of Ulr sine canmies significant risks
for 8 world econormy that has yet 1o fully recereer from the impacts of the global COVID-19 pardemic. The impact of the
eorsetuentiol geo-politicsl smstabdity, finsncial market volatility, and impotition of tenctians on the ity are not possible
1o fonezast 81 this time

COPMITRENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Ir the poemal course of busbess, the Trostee on behall of the Fund may erter iMo cortracts that contain & variety of
representations and wanraries and which provdde general indemnificstions. The generd indesmaificitions apply ot acly
to the extesl such representations and warrarties are untrue but also ey cover third parties such as the Furd's
Admiristrator, Auditor or wvestrment Manager Sor claims related to the services performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
PN Expsune LNGEr By sudh RS B oued 1, B R & oply arises 10 the exterd futuee daims thet
hawe not yet ooourred are mede against the Trstes. Howewer, bated on egperience, the Troites expects the itk of bois to
e remote

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performes 8 subkeguent seens meview up 1o uly 26, 2022, whish is the date the financial stotements were
svailable 1o be yued.

Effective March 1, 2002 thvough July 36, 2032, there were subsoriptions of USD 1,718 o respes of JPY Monthly
Distribution Class snd there were subaariplisas of USD G659 848 in retpect of 1PY Serri-frmusl Distributicn Clase, there were
subseriptions of USD 4335 in respect of USD Manthly Distribution Class, there were subsariptions of USD 100,256 in
redpect of USD Semi-Annual Diribution Clasi.

Effective March 1, 2022 through luly M6, 2002, there were fedempliond of USD 93,995 in respect of IPY Monthly
Distrilbution (lass and thene wers redemptions of USD 323,852 in respect of 1PY Sermi-Anrual Distribution Class, there were
recemption of USD 385882 in nespedt of USD Monthly Distribation Cais, thire were redempfions of USD 522,733 in
respest of USD Sem-Annusl Distriwation Olass,

There were distributionrs of USD 224593 in respect of JFY Morihly Deribotion Oass, There wane distributions of LUSD
115,204 in redpect of JPY Seri-Arnud Distribution Clds, There were dstributions of USD M 066 in respect of USD
Mleant by Dirs tri bution Class, There wer & cistributions of LSD 67,209 in respest of LSO Semi-Anrual Distribution Class,

Thiere are fo other agrificent events 1o fepart 25 they rdate to the Fund,
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2021

28

2021 28

63,548,669

468,996,501
49,371

3,626,665,845
372,105

3,912,075
388,954

19,700,876
1,876,149

136.68
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62,718,701 8,572,392
146,393 20,009
1,111,068 151,861
1,297 177
171,193 23,399
16,066 2,196
64,164,718 8,770,034
1,509,286 206,289
7,844 1,072
62,423 8,532
33,573 4,589
25,038 3,422
14,954 2,044
9,533 1,303
7,788 1,064
2,998 410
2,094 286
398,565 54,476
35,186 4,809
2,109,282 288,297
62,055,436 8,481,737
60,395,415 8,254,845
1,660,021 226,892
62,055,436 8,481,737
9,499
9,746
10.06 1,375
10.50 1,435




EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 28

2,941,253 402,010
2,941,253 402,010
512,749 70,083
452,426 61,838
70,481 9,633
55,782 7,624
24,105 3,295
15,081 2,061
15,002 2,050
2,813 384
78,820 10,773
1,227,259 167,742
1,713,994 234,269
(99,040) (13,537)
1,499,035 204,888
1,399,995 191,351
(2,483,808) (339,487)
(1,389,467) (189,912)
(3,873,275) (529,399)
(2,473,280) (338,048)
(759, 286) (103,779)

136.68
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2021 28
1,713,994 234,269
1,399,995 191,351
(3,873,275) (529, 399)
(759, 286) (103,779)
(63,238) (8,643)
(300,078) (41,015)
(78,475) (10,726)
(383, 669) (52,440)
(825,460) (112,824)
1,111 96,248 13,155
2,108 199,282 27,238
211,506 2,135,376 291,863
292,891 3,093,559 422,828
26,655 (2,396,869) (327,604)
39,246 (3,615, 856) (494,215)
65,521 (648, 486) (88,635)
2,059,636 (21,796,912) (2,979,202)
(22,933, 658) (3,134,572)
(24,518,404) (3,351,175)
86,573,840 11,832,912
62,055,436 8,481,737

136.68
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2021 28
2017
2012 10 15
2021 a CIMA
2017 30
50
NRSRO
NRSRO
2020 12 CIBC
UFJ UFJ PB
UFJ UFJ
PB SMBC
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946

GAAP

FASB
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2021 28

2021 28
62,718,701 62,718,701
16,066 16,066
62,734,767 62,734,767
2021 28
398,565 398,565
398,565 398,565
FASB ASC 740

50
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12 62,611
2,945,465
22,652,825
2021 28
)
(
2020 29
2021 28
2020 29
2021 28

)
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9,051
43
24 217,243
39
24 1,281,330
)
)
) D
6,860,450 38,110,582 2,527,093 39,075,715 86,573,840
96,248 199,282 2,135,376 3,093,559 5,524,465
(2,396,869) (3,615,856) (648,486)  (21,796,912)  (28,458,123)
(63,238)  (300,078) (78,475) (383,669) (825, 460)
(94,521)  (353,515) (23,433) (287,817) (759, 286)
4,402,070 34,040,415 3,912,075 19,700,876 62,055,436
74,915 409,243 242,969 3,642,894 4,370,021
1,111 2,108 211,506 292,891 507,616
(26,655) (39,246) (65,521)  (2,059,636)  (2,191,058)
49,371 372,105 388,954 1,876,149 2,686,579
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10

2021
1,350,747
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91.48 10.06 10.50

10,000

10.00

2021 28
28 158,539

10
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15
15
2017
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2021 28 NNA
MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 7,702 (10) 7,692
Citibank PB 8,364 (8,364)
16,066 (8,374) 7,692
2021 28 MNA
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MNA
(©)
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 10 (10)
Citibank PB 398,555 (8,364) 390,191
398,565 (8,374) 390,191
@
2021 28
16,066 (398,565)
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2021 28
1,489,522 (1,389,410)
0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2021 28
512,749 2021 28 33,573
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2021 28 70,481 2021
28 14,954
0.015
15,000 2021
28 15,002 2021 28 9,533
0.02
2021 28 15,081
2021 28 2,094
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10

11

2021

28

62,423

FATCA/CRS

2021
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0.60

452,426

140,000

1,500

2007 - 2008
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1970

COVID-19

COVID-19
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12
13
FASB 2018 28 ASU 2018-13 820
ASU 2018-13 ASU 2018-13
ASC 820 an
entity shall disclose at a minimum at a minimum
ASU  2018-13
ASC 820
2019 12 15
14
2021
2021 2021 942
183,654 102,089 29,961
2021 2021 338,415
2,582,461 273,529
2,296,175
17,452 129,895
30,778 111,698
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2021

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Azzars:

IFrestert b sty P, SF value {codl of USD 63 548, 669] L 62, P18, 0
Ll T, 350
RE0r wase Tor (AwrwIrments ol 1111068
Reoe wase for e prion prooeeds 1197
Interet frdivablie 171,153
Usrealzed appreciation on lonwand fore gn oomency cxchangs contrads 1k 5

Toaal assets

54, 14, T8

[Liabali bies:

Paypalsie for st redeeed 1, 5 TG
Payaliale for Invesiments purchased 7Haa
Arerued dHFDUINS e H2427
Arerud mankgement e 33573
Accrued prodess onal fees 25H8
AU CLTD0E 0 A S el T ST raos fer 14,554
Arerued trushes feey LR
Accried trarefer agens fees 7. ras
Accrued negEEGn e 1998
Aaerud Ejent camaey s hees L
Unreal zed deprecation on forwand Foneign oomeny cRrange comiras 98,565
[ s 35,186
Total Randlnies 2,108, 133
Het Anets At ributable to Unitholders LA HM
Amabysls of Net Assets:

Pad i camital LS B, TS5 4105
Total atributable paraisgy LG0T
et Assets Amritatable to Unitholders s 62,055 435
Kot Avset Value per Unit

{RPF Moy Distrizetion Class IPY 453,596,501 + 89,371 Units outstanaing) 1PV 9455
{FFY SemsAnnual Distrouton Cass JFF 3606 50 B45S + 3T 105 UsEs outstancngh IFY 9T
U0 Miasthy Diatr Botion Class LED BLR0T005 + BBAS5 Unitt sutitand~g) [T18) k04
{UISD femi-Anngal DrSation Class LSO 19, FO0AT6 + 18 M6, 148 Ut outitasding) IS0 10 5

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
[Expressed In United States Dollar)

ImveIrse et Income:
Interest s 25941 5
Tota! lveestrent Idame PRI a] ]
IxpEnses:
Management e 512,74%
Boanribunnss fees 450 AN
Custonan an su bead mi nesiraior s fees T 431
Profestonal fees &5, 732
Transher age-s foed 4,105
Agent company's fees 15,081
Truatee fees 15,0052
Regatcaton foes &N
T e res TR D
Teal Exgeridid L2ITI5%
ot I L N cone 171398
Realized and Unrealzed 6ol /[Losses]:
REiFeg gaba|inuei)
Irwest e in ey fites o nanp
FOrein curmenoy Trars ations &~ forward Tooe gn curency echage Coniracts 1,899,005
Met reslized gaine 1. ¥ 995
Chacge = pvealized sppoed atiaaNdepreciation)
IFWESEMETS i SeTunTes {2,483 808}
FONEis Curneny Dartactions. A% Bonwass 1o gn Curency eachasgs Contracts {1, ER9 467}
MET CRARRE in unfealned O precalon {37327

Mt rEalized and unfeal e insse

et decrease in net st resulsing from cperationn

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Incremue [Decrease] in Wet Asiets from:

Dperations
N e itmend indoe

Lridr 1713, 904

Net realined gaina 1,455 595
W Change in LA ralitng Srpreciatian [2873,275)
N1 SnChEai e N Nt AAeh esul g from aperrions 5%, 266
[Dfrrib utioer 1o Linith olders:
FPF Macunhly D ran Class (63, TER]
FPY Semisfnna) Distriostion Chass {300,075
LIS Rbomihly Dosarianion Chss [78,475]
P Sariminnual Db tion Cass (383, 668}
Toda! Dsiriouilons [R5, 460]
Caphal Traniaction:
L=ty g
FFY Moewthly Diarisoron Class {1,111 Uaina) 56,248
BPY Sermi-Annyal DAArsotan Cais {2,108 U] 195282
L Manihly Disfribuflon Class {211,505 Unfs] 213530
LS S e dinnual Diatrbution Cass {292,891 Units] 3,093,559
Lty regdeemed
FPY Moy D riston Class {26,655 Units) [2,396,8649)
FFY Semi-Annual Daariseton Chass {39,266 hin) [E515R56)
LS hlavthiy Diarisgtinn Class {65,521 Usini) |48, 456)
LIPS S e innial Datrbution Oass |2, 0609 635 Units] !I]‘M!] 2}
RBET LIRS € ) T A resdEng 1rom Capeal ransactiong. !:I':I"B]!.I:-Ht
Teital Daeoreass im MNet Asaets [ﬂ.ﬂl.ﬂ
et Assets:
Beganing o yeas BE.5 71840
Frie of yrar S0 GL0G5,456

The stcampanying nates Jre an integral part of these firancisl statemerts.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

CRGAMIZATION

Doubdeling Total Roturn Fund [the “Furd®™] & a senies trust of the Mikdio AM Offshore Funds, an open-enced urit tust
establisked by 3 supplemental trust deod dated February 8 2017 [the “Supplemental Trust Deec™], under the laws of the
Cayman klarnds. Nikko AM Offshore Furds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2002 [the "Master
Trust Deed”), under the bws of the Cayman Idlands and i licensed with the Caymar Islands Maretary Autharity pursuant
1o spction 4 1]{a) of the Mutual Furds At (2021 Revision), The Furd commenced aperations on Marck 30, 2017,

The Fune's assets ane maraged on a day to ¢y bask by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited [the “Marager®). The Manager
delegates irvestmert maragemert duties to Nkko Asset Managemert Co., Ltd, [the “lreestment Manages®). The
Ipvestmirt Marager delegated investment manigement cuties to DoubleLine Capital LP, (the =5ub-Investrmert Mansger).
The acministration of the Fund i delegated ta Brawn Brathers Harriman & Co. [the “Custadian™ and “Sub-Administratar®],
& limited partnership oqganined wnger the Liws of thae State of New York,

TE& irvestient ahjective of the Fund B 1o ackidae b mid 0o lasg bedm Batal fetunn thiough ircome Snd A pital b pareciation.
Urder rormal cécumstances, the Series Trust shall invest over 50% of @5 nef assets in residential ang commercial
martpage-backed wecuritios, Jnively allacated BETween AREADY ARG REN-BREC0Y SECUrITHS.

Thise imvesuments may include mortgage-backed securities aof ary maturity o Type, including those guaraneed by, or
secwned by collateral that s guarartend by, the Urited $tates Goverrment, its agencies, instrumertalities or sponsonec
carparation:, and privately wed mongige-backed teturities rated ot the time of purchase AaJ ar Righer by Moaody's ar
Ad ar higher by S&F or of an eguivalent rating by any other nationally recognized statistical rating organization {“HESRO")
that s been recognided by the LS, Securitizs ard Dxchange CommBdon of unrdbed Secudities TR are determined by the
Irvpstmaet Manager or its delegates to be of comparable guality, Trese investrents ako eclude, among others, LS.
Goverrment martgage pass-thraugh securities, collateralized mongage obligations, mulicliss possthrogh securiies,
private mortgage pass-through seourities.

The Senes Trust may also invest in shart term imeestments, such as notes ssuvee by US, Government agencies, and bands,
debt tecuritios ard other foed income i nstrumerts ued by LS, Gosvermmental or privite-S6e1ar @ntitied, or other Jitet-
backed cbligations, call I loar chbigations, ard oblgathors of the US. Gowernment ame Rs agenches,
iU e AT | e e Lpantaned COFBOFItaRL,

The Series Trust may invest in bands of any credit quality, includirg thase that ane at the time of irvestment unrated or
rated 884 ar lower by SEF or Bal or lower by Moody's or of an sguivalent mting by any other MRSRO. Bonds and fised
income irdtruments rated Below irvestmert grade, oF Sl indtruments At are unrated and cdetermired by the
Irvestmaeg Manager of s delegates 1o ke of comparable guality, am high yhele, Righ risk bones, commanly krawn as jurk
baords’. The Series Trust may invest up ta a third of its pet assets in junk bards, bank ksans and assigrments that are either
ratee bolow investment grace or are wrrated but detormined by the Inwestmort Marager or [ts celegates 1o be of
comparable qualiy, and credit default sevaps of companies in the high yield universe.

Thae Series Trust eay irwvest 3 portion of B5 net assets i irverse flaater securities and ipterest-only and prircipal-asly
ST LrRies.

Urder the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deeo, FirssCaribbean Interratiora] Back and Trust
Company [Cayman) Limited {formerdy CIBC Bark anc Trust Company (Caymar] Limited vp to March 12, 302 [the
Trutee” and the “Administratar™) i named s Trustee of the Furd.

The Maragor appointed Mgsubishi UF) Monganr Staedey PB Socunitees Co,, Lt {formeddy Minsubishi UFI Margar Stanbey
Securities Co., Ltd.] 1o det a4 Agent Compary [the “Agent Compary™] snd the Manager apgpairted MEtwubishi UF] Morgan
Stankey PB Securities Co., Lt fformerly Mitsublshi UF) Margan Stanbey Securities Co, Ltc,) and SMEBC Trust Bank Lig, o act
as Distributars {the “Distributors™] of Units in Japan.

SUMPMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES

The Fund & an Investment Company that follows the accounting and repomting guidance in FASE Accounting Stancards
Codification Sdé.

Use of Estimotes

The sccomparying financis statemerts bave bear propared in scoordance with scourting principles gererally sccepted in
the United States of America [“ULS. GAART). The preparation of financla| statements im accordance with U5, GAAR requines
thie Furd's maragemint 1o make estimanes and Jssumptions thay aifect the repomed amousts of sets ang labigies and
disclotured of contingent addets and labiltied at the date of the financll statemerts and the reported amawnts of
rEVERLES and dapirses during the reporting pericd, Acual resuls, ircluding the witimate ameurt realized upon the sak of
fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differenoes may be significant.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUBMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continised)

Basls of Accounting

Seourity and contractual transactions are reconded on 3 tradefcontract-date basks. Interest income s recorded on an
eMective yiekd basi, set of Jay pplicable withhalding tax, [ADeredt expenid 3nd clher cxpendes ane roorded on 3n acerual
basis. Realized gairs and losses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securities
soki or covernd, Charges in the valuation of irvestmerts ane recorded in the Statesment of Operations 38 unnealized
appreciation or cepreciation.

Woluation of favestments

Bandy ard other debt decurtied, imchuging restricted securities [other than dhom-term obligations but ircluding Baed
ksues] are fair valued an their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of valuations furnisked by 3 pricing service, use of which Bas boen app by Th Ir T Manager, or if nosake
has occurned, the bic price on the valuation date a5 proviced by brobers who are maroet makers in the seourities. All debt
secunies with less thas 12 manths to maturity date, in prirciple shall be fair valued using an amonized cost effected by an
effective yiclkd accumulatedfamartization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparison with
Market prices 34 requined,

Ir Becondame with the autkaritative guidance on fair valui measurements and cuclosures under US. GAAP, the Fund
discloses the fair value of its investmerts in a bierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techrigues used to measure
the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priovity to valuations bated upon unadjusted guoted prices in active markets
for ientical assets or Babilities {Level 1 measurement]) arc the lowest prority to valuations based upon unobservable
inputs that are sigrificant 10 the valustion (Level 3 measurements]. The guidanoe estabishes three levels of the fair value
higranchy a5 follows

# Lewel 1 - Irputt that reflect unadjuated guated prices i aotive markets for identica] isvestmerts that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measuremert date;

. Lewel 2 - IPputs other than guated prices that are significart and observable for the asiet or liabdRy either
clirectly or indirectly, including imputs in markets that are not considered to be acthe;

*  Lewel 3 - Irputs that are significent ard unobiervable.

IFputs are used i applyicg the varmais valuation wechrigues and brosdly refor 1o the sdumptiors that mardket pamesipants
use to make valuation deckiors, including assumptions abowt risk, Imputs may incluge price information, specific and broad
oredit caty, llguidity statitics, and other factars. A finarcial instrumert’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based upor
the lowest level of any irput that is significart to the fair value messuremert. Howewver, the cetermination of what
carstitutes “observable” requires sigeficart judgment by the Investmert Marager. The Investment Marager corsicers
obsereable data to b market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updannd, reliable and veriflable, not
propietany, and provided by independert seurces tRat B dctivily irvaléed in the relevant market. The categarization of a
funarcial iestrument withim the hirarchy & based upan the pricing transparency af the instrument and coes rot recessanly
carrespond ta the Investment Manager's perceived risk of that instrument.

Invesemerts whase values are Based on the quoted market prices in 3ctie markets, and therefone classified within Level 1,
would include actively taded eguities, certain WS, goverrment ard sovensign oblgations, and certain asset-backed
socurties ard collateralized mortgage obligatiors. The [evestrment Marsger would not sdjvet the guated price for suek
Instrummets, aven in situations where the Fund held a large position and a sale could reasarably impact the guoted price

IFeitnbirtd that tedde in mbrketd that bré fal cocdidered 10 b Sctive, But are valued Baded af quated marker priced,
dealer guotations or altormathe pricieg sources suppared by abservable inputs ane classifind within Level 2, Those include
IVEST MR- E G bt SeCurithes, showt-tenm Fvesments and fanvard foreign cumency exchange contiacts and may ako
include cortain asset-bacimd securities and colliteralzed martgage oblgatiors. Az Level 2 imvestments irclude positions
that are rot traced in active markets ardfor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiguidity andfor non-transferabilty, which are gererally based on available market irformatian.

Investmeets classified within Level 3 have significart unobservable inputs. as they would trade irfrequently, Level 3

instrumenTs wouks inglude cortin Jaset-backed weurities anc collneralized mangape obligations. As observable prces are
not available for those seourities, the Fung woult use valuation tochnigues to denkie the fair value,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUBMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLICIES [continised)

Viluation af lavestanents feantinaed]
Tk inputs or methooology used for valuing securities are not recessanily an indication of the risk assoclted with investing
in thase secy rities,

The fallowirg table prodestd the firancial irdtruments carmsd or the Stmement of Adtetd and Linbilneed by chption and by
evel within the waluatior hisrarchy as of February 28, 2021, Further classifications of the firanclal instruments are
preserted in the Portfolio of Irvestmerts. There were ra trarsfers between kevels during the year.

Aazets at Falr Value Fair Vahse at
Lirviell L Lirvill 2 Lircal & Fakruary X8, 2021
Faoed Incorme sk = WD G2 T [T7] = Wb LTI N0
Forward Fooeign Cumrency
Fat e COALSREN - 16, 066 - 16 DS
Tatal [ = [T [FRITNIS] [T = (T8 [FRETNT]
Llakilitley 2% Falr Value Falr W ahos at
Ll L L 2 Lol 3 Fabeuary 28, 2021
Ferward Fosegh Cussenty
Exthange Casteacti WS = 1] ] S0 = [1:1E] A%, 565
Taital [0 - UsD I8 565 [T - LD A58, 565
Foreign Curmendy Transiation

Aszets and labilities held in currencies other tham United States Dollar (SUSD" or the “Functional Currency®™) are translated
o the Furctional Currengy ag the rate of wechange prevailing ag tha firancial statement cate, Ircome and CEPEAES Are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the cate an which the ircome or expense i ircurred. Realzed and
urrealived gaind snd ladted drisieg on farign curresoy tranLactiond are included in the Statement of Operations in the
periad in which they occwr.

The Fund cons not kolate that portion of the results of operatiors resutting from changes in foreign ecxcharge rates on
investments from the flctuations arisieg from changes I marker prices of securiios bald. Suek fluctuatiors ane mcluded
with the net realized and unrealized gair or loss from investments.

Income Toxes

Urder the current Liws of the Caymar ldancs, there are ro incomes, withholdieg, capital gairs or other taxes pavable by
thir Furd, bn civtaln juriscictions ather thar the Cayman Islands, forelgn tares may be withhelkd a1 source on dividenss and
it et recohied by the Fund. Capital paies cerived by the Fund in such jurscictions generally will be exempt from faneign
income or withhalktieg tawes at source, The Fund irtencs to corduct its affalrs such that & will rot be subject to ircome tax
in any jurisdictior. As a result, ro provision for income taxes kas been made in the finarcial statements. Unithalders may
be taxed on their proportorate share of the Fund's tax bass income based on their indiwidual circumstanoes.

The Fund follows the authoratke guidarce or accourting for ard disclosure of uncertainty bn tax posiiors (Financial
Accourting Standands Board [“FASE®) - Accownting Stancards Codification 740], which reguires the Manager to determine
whether 3 tax position of the Fund |5 more likely than rar to be sustained upor examiration by the applcable taxing
autharity, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based an the technical merits af the position.
For tax positiors mesting the mare Biely thar nat threskolc, the tax berefit recogrized in the financial satemerts is
recuced by the lanpest benefit that hat a greater thar fifty percent likelirood of beirg realited wpan LRimate settlement
with the relevant taxing avthority, The Marager has determinee that there s smicimal or no effect on the financial
statements being under this avtheritative guicance.

Forward Foreign Currency Exchenge Contracts

Thae Furd may efter inte farward foreige currerey eXchangn contracts 1 bodge agains foreige currency exchange rate
riiks on all ar 3 pantion af rac-USD deramirated investments or far efficiert portfalic maragement purposes. When
eetering inte a forward foreign curmency exchange coetract, the Fund agrees o receive of delver a fioed quantity of
fareign currency for ar agreed-upon price on an agresd futune cate. These contracts are valued caily, and the Fund's net
eculty themie, mpreserting wnrealzed appreclationfideprecution) or the cortracts as measured by the differerce
betweer the farwand foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry into the cantracts and the foraard rates atthe
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Forward Foreign Cormendy Exchange Controcts (rontiawed)
reparting date, it incluced in the Statement of Assers and Liabilities. Realized and uoreakiped gaics and botset are ncluded
in tke Statemert of Operations.

These irstruments irvobe market risk, credit risk, or both kirds of risks, in excess of the amount recogriced in the
Stavemert of Adtets and Labilities. Rigks arise from the potdible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
cartracts and from movement in currency and secunities walues and irterest rates. bn addition to the Class kewel bedging,
the Fumd Fad realized boss of USD 50051 or 12 forward fareign cummency exchange cortracts during the year with ar
average notioral of S0 62,611 and an average term to maturity of 9 days. The Furd bad net realized gain of USD 217,243
o A3 farward farsigh curreney Exihanpe contracts haks ot the JFY Morthly Databition Cliss Hedped level during the year
with an averagn notional of S0 2,945 465 and an average term to maturity of 24 days. The Fund ako kad realized gain of
UsE 1,281,330 an 35 farwand fareign currency excharge contracts held ag the IPY Semi-Annval Distribution Class Hedged
leveel during the year with ar awerage notional of WSD 22,852,825 and an average term to maturity of 24 days.

While all er substantially all of the assets of the Fune may be held i U5 Dollars, it is irtenced far the Furd to enter into
hedgirg arrargements for the Berefit of IFY Marthly Dtrbution Class Units and IPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
which are denaminated in ¥Yen, Those arargemerts will be to becge against acverse movemants of the currency of
denomiration of the imwestmerts in the Series Trust relative to Yen. Any profits, gairs, losses, costs, ircome and
wxpent fture associated with such hecdgirg arrangements will be boree by cack class.

For the year enged Febroary 28, 3021 the rotienal exposure on the JFY Monthly Distibugion Class Unins ang JFY Semi-
Annual Distribution Class Units forward cunmrency exchange contracts approximated the average net assets for each class
being met lorg JPY ame shord USD, Open cortracts at wear and are cisclosed i the Portfollo of Investments

Cauh ond Fareign Currency
Cash and fareign currency comprises all currercy beld with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and avernight and ather short

term placements with ather fiearcial iestiutions,
UNITS

The pit adset of the Furd sne divided irto JPY Manthly Distribution Class Units, |PY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units,
UsSE Montkly DEtabutiar ass Urits ame UED Semi-Annual Distribution Class Urnits. The Urits are deraminated in Uried
St Dollar ard lapanese Yen, IFY Mosthly Detabution Class Usits, IPY Semd-Arnual Distribution Cliss Unims, USD
Muontkly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi Arnual Distribution Class Units are available to an cligibde investor who s
any pertan, corparation ar entity whick i nat {i} 2 citizen or resident of the LS., 5 padtrerihip arganized or existing in the
U5, or any carparatian, trust or ather entity orgarized under the laws of or existing im the US; [ii] persor or entity resident
ar gamiciled in tRe Cayman Blands (excluding any objedt of 2 charitable Drust o power or an exempbed of fon-resicert
Cayenan klands company); (i) unable 1o subscribe for or hald Units without vielatieg applicable liws, of (] 2 custadian,
REFIfEE, oF Trustee fﬁl‘ﬂl"'p EErAan, corparktion o entity cescribad in i) oo i) sbove.

The Maraper may determine ta issue ane or mone clisses of Units of the Fund without prior natice ta or written consent of
the Unitholders
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LINITS {continued)

Al af the ret assets attributable to JPY Marthly Distribution Class Units, 10Y Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units Class,
USD Mosthly Distribution Class Units ard USD Semi-fnrual Ditdbution Class Wnits, are bebd by two Unithalders.

WY Monthly PV Semi-Amessal  USDMonthly  USD Semi-Annual
Distribytion Clasy  Diviribution Gass  Distribution Gass  Distribetion Class Total Furd

Bslante 81 Februky 2%, MO0 WD GREQASE  URD ERIIOGED  USD  152R0MF LSO AROFSTIS  USD BASTEASD
Susacnptions durisg the year 55,248, 195,262 2,035,375 1,093,559 5,524,465
R pitianns guring the yea (2. 395, 868) [3.EN5R56] B4R 455) {21, 796.502) {26,438,123)
Distributions (3,238 (300,078 (TRATI) [EETrE (&5, 460}
et decreas e in net avsets resuliing

fram aperaiond {4,521 [A53.515] (IEA4) [FETALTN (Fa%.286)

Mt At at Februang I8, 2021 USD S 401000 WSD SeNMnd1h WD 551207 S0 15 AMUETG  USD 62065435

Number of Unitd in Biue 8

Febeuaty I, 000 4,515 Al 148 FLFR L] LEE PR, ] LR TS
Lising daued duriag The year ER B 2,108 211,506 92 E E0TELG
Unts redeemed curing Ihe year (6 Eaa) [3%.246) {65,521} 12,065 634) (EA%0.058)
Hamber of Unats in siue @

Feseuay 28, 2021 £ F2105 ETLE LATR14S 2686579
Mt Aot Value per Linig s

Februaty I8, 2011 usn ERih UsD G148 U0 100h  wEn 1050
Swhseriptions for Units

1P Montkly Distribution Cliss Usits and IPY Semi-fnnual Divtribution Clss Units were fit Bdued 1 ap ini] ssue price
of IFF 10,000 per Unit. The minimum inigial subscription for JPY Monthly Distribution Clss Units and JPY Semi-Anrual
Disteibgion Class Units per subseriber i 1 Uniser mare, and in multiphes of 1 Uris theneafier,

U0 Monthiy Distribution Class Units and USD Semi- Arnual Distribution Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price
of USD 10.00 per Unit. The mirimum initial swbscrigtion for USD Morthly Distribution Cliss Unite and USD Semi-Anrual
Distribution Class Un s per subscriber & 10 Urits or more, and in multiples of 1 Unit thercafter.

Tk Marager may walve or change the minimum initial and additional subscription amourts set forth abave in it sole
dinerenian Fram Lime Do Tind,

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recogrizes redemptions in accordanrce with the authoritative guidance an distinguishirg luhilitios from equitty.
Redemptions, whether expressed a3 United States Dallar, Japanese Yon or Units, are recogrited a3 Esbilities when each of
the Japarese Yen and United 5tates Dollar Urit amourts recuested e the recemption rotcn becames fend, which
gererally may socur either ot the time of the receipt af the natice, of an the a2 day of 2 fiseal year, depending on the
mature of the reguest. As a result, recemptions pake afior the ond of the wear, but based upom year ord ot assets are
reflected as redemptiors payable at February 18, 2021, There were USD 158,530 for United States Dollar Units ard USD
1,350, 747 for laparese Yen Units of recemptions payabe as at February 22, 2021 ircluded as Fayable for Units redeemed
in the Statemert of Assers ard Lisbilities.

Repurches e of Uinits
Urits may be repurchased at the optien of Unithalders an each Valuatior Doy, or such othor day or days ag the Manager
oy from ime 1o time determine in respect af the Series Trus ["Repurchase Day).

Uritholders wishing to have Units repurchased must serd 3 completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributors £o 35 19 be
recehved by the Distributers ro eer than 300 pm, [Tekyo time] or the relevast Repurchase Day, The Distrbutors wil
send the completed Repurchate Natioes ta the Sub-Adminitratar by no later than 6:00 pom. [Tekyo time) on the relevant
Repurchage Day or By such ather timn a5 the Sub-Administrator may Im any pamcular case cetermine

If the relevant Repurchase Nation is rot recedied by the Sub-Adminkstrator by the relevart tane, the Repurchase Nogion will
be held over wntil the next follawing Repurchase Day after the Repurchaie Matice i received ard Urits will then be
receemed at the relivant repurckase price app licable ar that Repurchase Day,

A Repurchape Notn, arde ghitn, 5 Srrwocable,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

LINITS {continued)

Compulsory Redemption

Ir the eweert that the Trustes or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any class of o Series Trust sne being beld by
or for the benefit of a persor who & not an Eligible Investor for such Series Trust or that such holdieg would cause the
Truat of the Sefed Trust to be recuired to register, be subject to tax arf wiolate the laws af ary juridiction, or i the Trustee
o the Manager kas reason to doubt the kgitimacy of the sourcn of monies vsed 1o fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, ar for whatever reasan {which may nat be dischosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholders) that the
Trustee or the Marager corsicers appropriate at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unithalders of
the rlevart Class of the Unithalders of the Series Trudt as o whale, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof 1o sell such Uinits within 10 days ang provide 1o the Trustee and the Manager evideron of
sueh sale, failieg which the Manager may nedesm such Urits,

Termination of the Fund
Upan termiratior, the Manager will realize all the assets af the Fund, and alter paying out or retdicing adeguate provision
for all liabilities properky payable ard retaicing provision for the osts of the termiratior, the Trustee skall distribute the
procends of that realization ta the Unitkakiers prapartionately 1o their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Biseributlons no b frbold:
The Marages may, fram tirme te tme, in B sole dieretion, declire ditributiors from Sep birr J0LT. Distribauticon will be
declared on each Business Day immediately prior ta the [x-Distribution Date for JIFY and USD Distribution Class Units or
such ather date or dates as the Manager may from Time 1o time determine in respect of the Series Trust ["Distribution
Record Date”} ard calculated or the fifteenth [15th]) day of each montk for Montkly Distribution Class Urits and the
fifoearth (15¢h) cay of March and September of eack year for Semi-Anrual Distribution Class Units (if such cay & not a
Busiress Day, ther on the fallowing Business Dayj, or such aother date or cates in each morth as the Manager may from
TifnE T Tifve Setermice in respect of the Series Trust ["Ex-Distribution Date”]. Distribution Period is & period commancing
fram the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Recard Date ard ending an and including the Distribution

Record Date. The distributions will be paic on the relevant Distribution Paymert Date, provided that such amourt | any}
geclared with respect 1o the rebewant Class of Urits in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall only be paic out of
the Series Trust's et ircome, realiced and unrealized capital gairs amg any distributable furds of the Series Trust
artributable to sueh Clds of Linitd as determined by the Marager.

Tha declaration of distribitiors to Unitholders recuces the Cls Level Net Asset Value per Uit witheut ary correspond ing
charge in the rumber of Cass Level Urits per Unitholder. This results in a Unitholeer's owerall investmeert in the Fund
being recuced. In addition, any dtributiars during a period which are in exoess of the Furd's net inorease in net assets
mesulting from operatiors results in a partion of the distribution being return of capital.

Tee ameunt of distrbutions, if amy, will be determired By the Manager in 25 role discration, and no repretentation o
fuarantee & made that a distrbution will be made in respect of each or ary Detdbution Period.

Capitaliration

The Net Aseet Value per Urit is calculated for each Dealing Day [each busineds day, commendng on March 30, 2007, or
such other day or days as the Marager may from time to time cetermire in respect of the Fund abo a {"Valuation Bay™), by
dividing the cifference ir value between the Fusd's dsets Jnd linbiliied [including accrusd feed and experied of the Fung]
by the number of Units outstanding,

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units to be Esued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
gotprming and shall bo withouty par value,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accourting Stardand Cocffication [ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about dertvative instrumeets ard beding activities

It reguires that the Fund dischose: a) baw and why an ertify wses dermvative instroments, b how dervative instruments and
related hedged Eems are accounted for ard ¢ how cerwathes instruments and related bedged iems affect an ertity's
finarcial paistion, firancial pefarmarce and cash flaws.

Thae Fune trarddets forwand defvative inarumerts primadly for heeging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk

axpasune bring forelgn excharge rsk. The foreare forelgn curmoncy exchange cortracts held by the Fure do not gualify as
hedpes for accourting, purposes under the requirements of ASC 815, The fair value of these dedvative instruments is
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {comtinued)

included in the Statement of Assets and Liabiltées with changes in fair value reflected as realized gains/{losses) or net
charge in unnealiced appreciatia nfldepreciation) on defati within the 51 of Operations (Mote 2).

The Fund may enter into an International Swapd and Dervative Adsodiation, Inc. Master Agreemaeret (TIS0A Master
Agreoment”] with its counterparties in order to mitigate countenparty risk. The BDA Master Agreement ks typlally
ﬂhﬂﬁilbﬁ B the Fund and its counterparties, {drlaiﬂiﬂ‘ the bi-lateral terms and canditians for all subsequert dedative
transactiors, The 1504 Master Agreement allows for the retting of all amounts awed to or due from courterparty into a
dingle net paymect i a crecit saert or defau it dhauld eecur.

A1 February 28, 2021 the Fund had estered into the following derrvative assets by countarparmy met of amourts available
for offset under a Master Metting Agreement [“8MNAT] and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Borhathve Auiats  Cachvath Man-cath Eaik Wit Amsunt of
Eounterparty Subject to 3 MNA_ivwallsble for Offset Collsteral Recehved Collateral Recehved Derhath Assets!
Brown Braters Rariman & G, USDH 7.7 D 10 s s —usD gH
Citibank PB 5,364 {8,354)
Tatal uso 1546 30 {8374 U5D ~usD ~usn [

A February 28, 2021 the Furd Pad enteded ieto the follvwing dervathee labilties by counterparty ret of amounts avadable
for offset under a MNAand ret of any collateral pledged by the Furd:

Daibcative Derheathve hon-cxh Caiky Nt Ameunt ol
Counterpuarty Liak Hitder Available for Ot Collsters] Pledged Collatecal Pladged Darbeathos
Subject to 2 MNA Usbrles'
Hrowwry Brothers Marriman & Co Lrigr 1 LAD 100 LSy = LIS = LSl -
Cibank PB 398, 555 ELBI-] 191
Total Usp__ sssesusD  {8374)usD —uso _usD___ 350,151
T NE et Pl ThE PET Bmour! reeeiiebiepiyilie o e paity i the gebrt of defeul

At February 28, 2021 the Fund had entered into the followieg dertvatives:

Sunart Derheatives Lishility Derbeathes
Derhvathee Statmment Seatemant
Kot Aroosmted for as of Assets and of Axcets and
[Hdging Mo 17 umnT Liabsilinie s Locatiosn Fald W alus Liakilithes Location Faile "V lui
Forward foneign currendy  Unnealined appreciaton U ealr el 0o preriatson
R RANGE COMTACTS o0 foraan fanegn o Barward foregn
{Currency Raid CUTTENCY EXChangE [17¢] 106 CurmBny exchange (1.1 [EL - ETAY]
COAMracis oomtrats.
Thae effect of dorivatiee i VM ot Ehe 51 of Oparatiaons for the year ended February 28, 2021
Churge in Usroalited
Locatisn of Riralied Appreciation or
Derivatives Mot Account sd Galm or {Lo) Gain or Loas) {Depreciation] on
Tt as Hedging on on Dethvashias Cerhvath
et realded gainon oraand foreign
Farwasd foneigs Gufrisdy Euffendy exchatge Coaliatt;
et hange condracts change in unneal iped depreciation on forwand
{Curmency Raid fore'gn cumrency exchange o nbracts D 1,485,522 USD 11,359 4100
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Marager is entitled to recehe out of the assets of the Seres Trust a maragement fee of a total vp to E2% per annum
[QU03% per aanum in respect af fee far the Marager, 0.25% per annum of the Net Adset Value up to USD 400 millian and
0.22% per annum of the Met Asset Value aver WSO 400 million in respect of fee forthe Investment 8Manager, and 0,200 por
annuem af the Ner Asiet Value up to USD 400 millicn and 0355 per anrum of the Mer Asser Value aver USD 200 milliar in
respact af fon for the Sub-lrvestment Marager] of the Not Asset Value acoread on, and calculated a5 at, each Valuation
Day ard payable montbly in areears. In addition, the Manager is alto ertithed to be reimbursed out of the ssiets of the
Series Trust for any expenses incurred by it in the proper porformance of its powers and duties as permittec under the
Master Trust Deed. Duricg the year ended February 28, 2021, the Manager corned fees of USD 512,745, of which USD
33.573 is slll outsta ncing as of February 28, 2021,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

MANAGEMENT FEES [continucd)

The Manager will pay the fres of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The Imvestment Manager will be resparsible for
payicg the foes of the Sub-lrvestmert Marager and Jny of the Irvestmert Manager's delegates or ather parties appainted
by the Irvestment Manager to perfore its functicns in respect of the Series Trust

CUSTODMAN AMD SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. [the “Custocian® and “5ub-
Admicistratad™) far whick the Custodiin reoehied & fee caliulited ard paid modthly Bidted an total ddiets ard Braridction
s,

The Custocian and Sub-Adminktrator i entithed to receive out of the assets of the Seres Trust an sdmiratration foe
[inchuding trarsfer agert fee) cakulated based on the Het Asset Value 25 at cach Valuation Day at the following anrual
L LR

- DU up ta fand including] USD 250 milkan;

- U6 up vo (and incluging) USD 500 milkan;

- D05 awer USD S00 millian,

Such administration fee & payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the mirimum annual fee of USH 80,000, The Sub

At iriSranee i dl5o antithed o receive out of the dssets of the Seried Tres fees for currendy bdmirdTataar and execution
sondices at the rate of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minimum anrual
fen of LSO 50,000, In adéitian, the Cusadian and Sub-Administeator is alse ertiled 1o receive customary safekeepieg fees
and transaction charges. All out-of pocket expenses of the Custodian ard Sub-Administrator shall ako be borne by the
Sertes Trust, Duning the year ended Feboaary 28, 2021, the Custodian earred fees of USD 70,481, of which USD 14,954 &
still sutstardirg as of Februany X8, 3021,

TRUSTEE FEES

Thke Trustee ks ertitied to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a combired fee at the rate of 0U015% per anrum of
the Het Asset Value aconeec on, and caliulites as at each Valvation Day ang payable quartery in annears. sulject 1o a
minimum annual fee of WSO 15,000, Durning the wear enced February 28, 2021, the Trustee carmed fees of USD 15,002, of
whith USD 9,533 i still sutstanding ot of February 28 2021,

AGENT COM PANY'S FEES

The Agent Company & ertitled ta receioe out of the asets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0L.02% per annum of the
Net fsset Walue acorued or, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable guarterly in arrears. Durirg the year
erded Februsey 28 J02 1, the Agent earned feed of USD 15081, of which USD 2,004 & atill outstancing &5 of February 28,
2021

DETRIBUTICN FEES

Tha Disteibutors are entitled to receive oot of the assets of the Seres Trost a fee at the rate of 0.60% per arnum of the Net
Azzet Walue accrued on, and calculated a5 at eack Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrars. Dwring the year ended
Febeuary 28, 2021, the Distributers eamed fees of USD 452,426, of which WSD 62,423 & still outstanding as of February 28,
2021,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs ard experses in conrection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Urits, together
with the citshlichmant of the Trudt, including the costs ard ewporses af preparing ard printicg any praspectus or
explanatory brochures required, were estimated at bunch to amourt to approximately USD 1400000, Suchk costs and
expenses will be amortised within the firt five (5] ficancial years of the Series Trust unbess the Trustee decides that same
otkaer rerthod shall be applied, The Af mintstrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA J CRS complance senices
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Furd's activities eapose it to a wariety of financial risks: market risk (inclucing price risk, intorest rate risk, and currency
risk], enedit risk ard liguigity rigk.

Market Risk
Al irvestmanrs presaint a risk of koss of capital. The Investment Marager modarates this risk through a careful seloction of
secwrities and ather financa | instruments.

Thi Fund's ifvestmint marigimert process i cewcribed in Mate 1. The primary determicant of the Fund's ability to mest
s objectve of mid 1o long term capital appreciation while earning ircome is deperdert on the performarce of the
investient in the residential ard commencial mongage-backed wecunies,

The values of the Furd's imvestments ane sffected by a rumbeer of factors, incluging but rot limited to, charges in the wider
ecoramy, Tinancial and cwnmency markets, foreign currency exchang rates, iNTBREST FITE MOVEMErYS and creds ratings of
debt jsuers. The Fund enters into farward cartracts which to varying degrees represent 3 market risk in excess of the
amount reflecoee on the Furd's Statemart of Assets ard Liabdities, The notiaral amount of the contract fEprERENTS The
extent of the Fund's participation i these firancial Fstrements. Market rgks Jociated with such contraces arise due 1o
thir passible movements in foreign currercy pachange rates urderhying these instruments

Other marker 3ng onedin risks inchude the possibil ity that there may be an illicuie market for the cortracts, That the chanpe
in the value af the contract may rat directly correlate with changes in the walue of the underkying curnencies ar that the
counterpay 1o a forwand cortract defauls on s cbligation o perfarm ueder the terms of the contracr. The Fund's
exposune to oss dur to countenparty ron-perfarmarce on open futures, forwards, swap ard options contracts is limited to

thie unrealized appreciatien inherent in such firancial instruments which ane recognized i the Stamement of Assets and
Liahilities.

Asset-backed securities investment risk

Adget-backed weourition irvestment have the risk thar basrowerns mdy default on the abligatiors thar uncerlie the sioe-
backed security ang that, during periocs of fallieg interest rates, asset-bacied socurities may be called or prepaid, which
may result in the Series Trust bawing to reinvest proceeds in other investments at a lower interest rate, ard the risk that
the impainment of the value of the collateral underlying a securty in whick the Series Trust irvests [due, for example, o
nan-payment of loans] will resul in 3 reduction in the value of the Security.

Canmndentration ik

Tho Sores Trust bovests substantially in bonds issued by WS, agenches in acordamon with its principal investment
strategies. Because such securities are Esued by a limited number of government agencies, any actual or potertial
disruption to those agencies could present a risk to the Series Trust. Fannie Mae ard Freddie Mac, which are other
Rovernmiert-sponsared istuers of mortgage-back securities Similar to thode guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, suffered such a
gisnuption in the mangape cist of 2007 - 2008 and were pliced under federal consereatonship ot that vene, Ginrde Mae
sociries, urlike these of Farnie Mae and Freddie Mae, are backed by the full faith and erodit of the LS, goverm ment ang
arn subject to the risiks of LS, government securithes, Similar to atkar issuers, changes to the firancial concitior or credi
rating of the U2, governmert may cause the value of the Seres Trust's exposure to U S, agencies securities to declire.

Mortgoge-bocked securities rick

Morgage-backed securfis mpreseet interests e Tpools® of mongages and are subject te crecin interest rate,
prepaymient and exmendion k. Mortgapge-backed Leouritios react differently to changes in intenet rated than ather bords
and the prices of mortgage-backed socurities may reflect adverse economic and market conditiors. Small movemarts in
interest rates (both increases and decreases] may quickby ard significartly reduce the value af cotain martgage-backed
securtied, Defaul or bankruptey of & counterpany to & To-Be-anrounced IrAnLICTion would expose the Series Trust 1o
posdible ks
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continucd)

Muortgage-reloted and Other Asset-Bocked Securities dsk

The Fund may invest in momgage-relited ard ather asset-backed securities that directly or indinectly represent a
pamicipatian in, ar ane secured by ard payakde from, loans am real propemy, Mongage- related securities ane created from
pook af retiderto) o commencial mampage koord, includicg martgape leand made by dvingl ane ks indtitutiaed,
martgage bankers, commerclal banks and others. These securities provide a monthly paymaet which consists of both
interest and principal. Interest may be determired by fied or adjustable rates. The rate of prepayments on wnderlying
martgages will affect the prioe and wolatility of a momgage -related security, and may hawe the cffect of shortenieg or
extending the effectve duration of the securlty reldtive to what wai anticipited 5t the time of purckade. The timely
payment of priscipal ang irverest of comain mongage-nelated seourithes s guarantesd with the full faith and cregit of the
US. Gowermmert. Poold created ard gueararieed by ron-povernmental Bsvers, including gonvern ment-Spansonsd
corparatiens, may be supportad by varaws forms of insurance or guarantees, but thene cam be 0o assuranco that prvate
insurers ar guarantors can meet their obligations wrder the insurance polices or guarantes arrargements. Many of the
risks af irvesting in marngage-relited securities secunee by commercial martgage kars reflect the effects of local ang
atker economic corditiors on real pdtate markets, the skilty af tersnts ta make leadte paymerts, ard the akility of &
PP Ty B ATAACT And TN TRRANTS

Crdit Risk

Credit risk represents the potertial koss that the Furd would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debt securities failed
o peerfarm purduant 1o the terms of their abligations to the Furd. For exchange-traded contracts, the excharge 514 as the
counterparty to specific transactiars and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to ard from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund s managemant cosd Aot fordices That oreds fidk related 1o opon dervative contracts will Rave material
agverss effect on the finarcial cond tion of the Fund,

Although the Manager moriors the Custodian and believes it to be ar appropriate custodian, there & ro guarantee that
this @ ary custagian that the Furd may use fram time to time, will not Become insalvert, which <ould kead 1o losses for
the Fund,

While both the U.S. Bankruptey Code and the Spcurities Investor Protection Act of 1570 seck to protect customar propeny
in the ewent of 3 Failure, insobeency or liquidation of an instifution, tRere it no certainty that, in the event of 3 failure of an
institwtion that has custody of Furd asseis, the Fund would rof incur losses due to its assets being uravailable for a period
of time, ultimately bess than full recovery of its Jeoets, or batk. Because all of the Fume's cath i ir custody with 3 singhe
Ingtinution, sech losses could be significant and could matarially impair the abdiny of the Fund 1o achiewe TS Irvestmeet
abjecthvi, TRe Fund i subpect i credit risk 1o the extent tRIT Uhis institution @y be unable 1o Tulill it ablgations 1o repey
AMDUNTE owed,

hquidity Rigk
Irwetbars shauld Be aware that the value af Units migkt fall as well a2 rde. lovestment in the Fund invehoes i cegree of risk;
thene €an b ne Asurance that the Fursd's imvesument abjective will b2 achirved,

The Fund is exposad to cally repurchase of ts Units but management believes that the Furd kas sufficient resources to
meeet the present and foresecable needs of its business aperations ang, if recessary, the Bguidity to fund repurchases and

athieve 3 market potition appropriately reflecticg a smaller capital base. This position & manfored continually by
MAnIgemeny (o ensure That the Fund has the ability 1o meet B3 obligatiors,

Currency Risk

The Fund kalds monetary and nor-manetary assets and ircurs monetary and non-maretary labilities denomirated in
currercies othes than USD, the Functional Currerey. It is therefore exposed 1o cunmency risk, 38 the value of the Jdsem and
liabilities denominated in ather currencies {“non-USDT) will Aluctuste due fo changes in exchange rates. The Fund may
APTRT BNED S PR RSy Pt g TRENEACThans rom Tive 1o Time I o rser 1o limit 1S exposune 19 cuiercy risk,

The investment manager monibors the Fund's cumency ceposune on a daily basis.

Other Rk

During the year, the COVID-19 autbaeak was ceclined a pardemic by the Warkd Healk Organization. The situation is
dyramic with various citles and countries arourd the world resparding In gifferent ways to address the outhroak. The
rapid development and fluidity of this simcation precluodes any preciction as s vhimate impact, which may hawe a
cartinued acherse impact an ecoramic and market corditiors ard trigger a pericd of ghobal ecoromic shewdown.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continucd)

The Trustee ard Ievestmert Manager are monitoneg developments relating to COVID-19 and are coordirating their
aperational resporse Baded an exiting butiness continuity plars and on guidance from global kealth arganizations,
rahia i pavenn e et and general panciemic respanse DSt pracrioes,

COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENCIES

Ir the normal course of busicess, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into cortracts that contain a variety of
reprétentatiang ard warrantied ard whick pravide genédsl indemnifications. The general imdemaifications apply rat arly
0 the oxtort such representations and wamanties ane urtrue but ake may coser third pamies such as the Fund's
Admiristrator, MdRor of lvestment Manager for claims related 1o the services performed Tor the Furd, The Trustes's
MAKEMUM GXPOSLIE LAGer any such armangements B unknown, a5 exposure arly arkes 1o the oxtent future daims that
hawe not yet accunmed ane made agairst the Trestee. However, based on experience, the Trustee capects the risk of kass to
e nEmate

RECENT ACODUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

On August 28, 2008, the FASE ssued an Accountierg Stancards Update, ASU 2008-13, Fair Value Measuremoet [Topic 820):
Disclosure Framework-Changes ta the Disclosure Beguirements for Fair Value Measurement [*ASL 3018-137). ASU M018-13
mocifies the disclosure abjective paragraphs of ASC B0 1o eliminate (1) "at 2 micimum” from the phrase "an ety shall
digchose at 3 mirimum™ and | X] other similar “open erded” declosune reguirements to promote ERe appropriate caorciss af
discretion by entigies, ASU J018-13 akeo elminstes and modfies ather recuirements undaer ASC 820, The updane & effective
far all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods witkin those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019, Early
application & penmang,

A his time, it is not anticipated That these changes will have an impact on the firancial statemenes.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Maragement perdformed a sebseouent &wEnts review up o July 6, 2021 which b the cate the financial statemants wene
available to be Esued.

Cffective March 1, 2021 through July &, 2021, there were subscriptions of USD 542 in respect of IPY Monthly Distribution
Clss and these were subseriptiors of USD 133654 in respect of JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Clads, there were
subscriptions of USD 102089 in respect of USD Morthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptiors of USD 29,561 in
respect of USD Semi-Annual Distrbution Class,

[#ective March 1, 2021 throwgh July 6, D021, there were redemptiors of USD 332415 in respect of IPY Mornthly
Distribution Class and thare were redemptions of USD 2,582,451 in respect of IPY Semi-Arnual Distribution Class, thare
were redemption of USD 273529 in respect of USD Manthly Ditrbutson Cliss, there were redemptians of USD 2,296,175
in respect of USD Semi-Anrual Bistribution Class.

There were distributions of USD 17.452 i respect af JFY Manthly Distribution Cliss. There were distributions of USD
129,895 in redpect af Y Semi-Araual DeEtribution Cladd, There wene digfributiant of USD 30778 in redpect af LISD
Mantkly Distribution Class. There were cistributions of WSD 111,698 in respect of USD Semi-Arnual Distribution Class

Thers are no other signficant ovents 1o repart a5 they mlate to tha Fund,
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2022
37,617,395.94 5,141,545,677
333,344.47 45,561,522
37,284,051.47 5,095,984,155
200,555
1,041,877
57,185
343,452
8.93 1,221
9.47 1,294
8,415
8,735
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Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
MA02109-3661 40
40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A.
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3,438

2022

12
13

218,685,119,358
1,828,619,498
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2021 31
2021 2020
7,947,000 1,086,196 5,628,385 769,288
1,941,186 265,321 2,851,607 389,758
71,250 9,738 70,125 9,585
9,959,436 1,361,256 8,550,117 1,168,630
9,959,436 1,361,256 8,550,117 1,168,630
218,179 29,821 148,200 20,256
156,805 21,432 79,840 10,913
1,183,495 161,760 1,643,547 224,640
1,558,479 213,013 1,871,587 255,809
480,000 2021 31
2020 31
480,000 480,000 65,606 480,000 65,606
7,920,957 1,082,636 6,198,530 847,215
8,400,957 1,148,243 6,678,530 912,821
9,959,436 1,361,256 8,550,117 1,168,630
2021 12
129332
136.68
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2021 31
2021 2020
7,947,000 1,086,196 5,628,385 769,288
1,941,186 265,321 2,851,607 389,758
71,250 9,738 70,125 9,585
9,959,436 1,361,256 8,550,117 1,168,630
1 0.137 1 0.137
1 0.137 1 0.137
9,959,437 1,361,256 8,550,118 1,168,630
218,179 29,821 148,200 20,256
156,805 21,432 79,840 10,913
1,183,495 161,760 1,643,547 224,640
1,558,479 213,013 1,871,587 255,809
480,000 2021 31
2020 31
480,000 480,000 65,606 480,000 65,606
7,920,958 1,082,637 6,198,531 847,215
8,400,958 1,148,243 6,678,531 912,822
9,959,437 1,361,256 8,550,118 1,168,630
2021 12
129332
136.68
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2021 31
2021 2020

18,599,369 2,542,162 19,213,975 2,626,166
18,599,369 2,542,162 19,213,975 2,626,166
(1,225,898) (167,556) (1,183,017) (161,695)
(15,229,787)  (2,081,607) (15,585,538)  (2,130,231)
(227,557) (31,102) (244,274) (33,387)
(16,683,242)  (2,280,266) (17,012,829)  (2,325,313)
1,916,127 261,896 2,201,146 300,853
(11,500) (1,572) 10,240 1,400
(11,500) (1,572) 10,240 1,400
1,904,627 260,324 2,211,386 302,252

(182,200) (24,903)
1,722,427 235,421 2,211,386 302,252
1,722,427 235,421 2,211,386 302,252

136.68
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2021 31
¢ >y >y ¢ > c >y > o C D
480,000 65,606 3,987,144 544,963 4,467,144 610,569
2,211,386 302,252 2,211,386 302,252
480,000 65,606 6,198,530 847,215 6,678,530 912,821
1,722,427 235,421 1,722,427 235,421
480,000 65,606 7,920,957 1,082,636 8,400,957 1,148,243
136.68
2021 31
2021 2020
1,722,427 235,421 2,201,146 300,853
11,500 1,572 10,240 1,400
182,200 24,903
1,916,127 261,896 2,211,386 302,252
909,296 124,283 339,626 46,420
(394,011) (53,853) (861,555) (117,757)
(101,297) (13,845)
2,330,115 318,480 1,689,457 230,915
2,330,115 318,480 1,689,457 230,915
5,628,385 769,288 3,938,928 538,373
(11,500) (1,572)
7,947,000 1,086,196 5,628,385 769,288
136.68
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2021 31
3096T
EU

IFRS IFRS IFRIC

2021 31 IFRS

1ASB IFRIC EV
IFRS  1ASB
IFRIC
) )
)
12
2021 31 2020 31
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2021 31 2020 31
100
190
2021 2020
18,599,369 19,213,975
2020 31
2020 10
2021 31
2021 2020
19 2019 19 (182, 200)
(182,200)
(182,200)
2021 31 2020 31
2021 2020
10 20 21 958,983
19 2019 19
(182,200)
(182,200)
19.0

2021 2023 25
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2021 31 2020 31
2020 31
46,800
2021 2020

JPY 110.65 108.69
GBP 0.7274 0.817
SGD 1.3459 1.4256
EUR 0.8531 0.9103
HKD 7.7758 7.7525
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2021 31 2021 31
2021 31 a
@ ®) ®
C C C C
1,422,718 120,838
8,299,627 720,942
3,786,710 210,652
1,556,076 120,670
164,656 10,393
106,470
15,336,257 1,183,495
2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ o) o)
C C C C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951
6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
15,585,538 179,247 1,822,794
(a
(b

http://www._smth. jp/en/
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NIKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Curremt Assas

Cach nd cach squiralants

Accounis reodirable

Acrusd inoome nd prepaid epense
Total Curremt Asrts

Total Non-Curomt Assets
Total Assrs

Lish ilizies and Equity

Current Liahilities

Adrrued expenses el deferred imocene

AEIENS Pl

Amounts pryeble Lo group undatalangs

Total Current Lish lities

Equity

Capitaland Reerves Arributable in Equity

Holders of the Company

Ehare apalal (31 par valus, 480,000 share

pathonzed, 480,000 ghares isnoed and

outstandingal 31 Mandh 2020 a0d 20093

Retenal mmngs
Total Equity
Toeal L katilinkes and Equity

The enaal nobes bom 1 to? fom = mtegrnd pat afthese Aol satements

ASAT 31 MARCH 21
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Note e 2080
UsD UsD
7,547,000 628,305
1,541,104 3,051 407

71,250 70,125
0,550, 436 2,550,117
0,989, 436 2,550,117

218,179 148, 200

156,805 79,860
1,155,495 1,643,547
1,558,470 1,87 587

450,000 4800000
1520957 5,158,530
400,957 678, 550
0,950, 436 8,550,117

These finencsd statements ware gpproved by the Boand of Darectors on 3 Decamber 2021 snd sthorsed for izaue w0 signedon

hzbdhalfby

[W by
w:ﬁmm#r

D Criase
Diuratoor

Compery ragisered number 1293732
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NIEKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2000

Awrts

Cummt Asses
ot and czh equivdients

Auounis meouv e

Accrued oo and prped sgense
Total Currmt Assets

Mom-Cument Asses
Erreasiment o fbaidhany

T otal Non-Curomt Assets
Total Assds

L ks ilizies and Equiry

Current Liabilities
Accrusd expenses and defemed inoome
Aceamis payible
Ao pagratle Lo group ursatalangt
Total Curret L s ilities

Equiity
Capital and Reserves Afrdbuiable o Equity
Holdes of the Company

Ehaee cpital (51 per value, 450,000 shares muthonzed,
A5, 000 shares ismeed and outstanding & 31 harch
00 and 20050

Fetamsd] ewmings
Total Equity

Total L inbilities amd Equity

Bate

The eeeed notes from 1 bo® fomn an inkagrad paet ofthese Bnancial stabemnents
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2 200
sD Lh ]
7,547,000 5,628,385
1,341,166 2,851,607
71,250 0128
9950436 8,550,117
1 1
1 ]
9,959,437 8,550,118
218,179 148,200
156,808 79,840
1,167,485 1,643,547
1,558,470 1,871, 887
460,000 460,000
7520958 6,158,531
2,400,958 66783
9,980,437 £550,118

Thee finanasl fatemnts wae spprovsd by the Boand of Daectors on 3 Dicambear 2027 s sathomsad B issue dnd signedon

itz hehalf by

Dhpazia g by
| Ay,
FERFMTIDELFF.

B Cruase
Dot

Compary repisered number 129532
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MIKEO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2001

Fnte a2l et bl
B L1 U0
Operating Revmines
Inveshiment mmag enat end advizory fees from third parbies i 18, 500 5 12213575
Tetal aperaling o 18,552,367 19,213,575
Operating Exprnses
Saib advasony fees wath therd pataes {1,225, 208 1,183,007y
Sub-advazory Tees with group wdatsangs (15,229, 76M) (15,585,530
Cther cperating snd sdmimsintive scpense QX155 (244 Ty
Tetsl eparatang ap e (16,683, 242) (17,012,829
O perating Prof it 1,906,127 2,200,146
Other Inoome / {Expenses)
Ha forapn eedange (ost¥gain (18,5000 10,240
Tictal ctha inoome’epase 01,3000 10,240
Frof it BEffore Inoome Tax 1,504, 6527 1,211,386
Triccnmee koot ewpenite 5 182 200y
Prof it metribwtab e to equity kobders of the parmit 1,7k 27 221188
Caher Comrpebiensive Encome for the year . -
Total Comp eebvmis bve Inonmne For the year 1,782 a7 2,211,586

All ke Group®s operstrons are clenbad & continung

The ardvzead notes from 1 0o 9 fomn o bl part ofthese Brancial saaments
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HIERO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIPATED STAT EMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 221

Share Fetained

ane Capleal Eamings Tl

5D S sn
Balance st 1 April 2009 <30, 000 358714 4,467,144
Cther comrprehersire mcoms 5 2,201,388 321158

Lor Uheyesr
Balance at 31 Mardh 2020 <0, 00 6,198,530 6,678,500
Cther camprehensive 1,722,427 1,722,427
moceree for theyoe

Balanceat 31 Mardh 2021 <80, 000 7,920,957 2400957

The srssced nobes o 1 to® G an anfagral port ofthese Grasecial statements.
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MIEKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIMATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Cash Flows fron Operating Activities
Crperuting Frofic

Adfastments for

Bt forenpn mcchmge gam

Tax charge

Dp:';mm cagh flows before movemends in working
o

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Dreaexce in roonwables
(Cucrease) inpayible
Income fax pad

ek Cash CGememivd Fomm ﬂfpﬂ'ﬂhg.l..dhﬂn

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalmts
Cash and cash eqiivalents, baganrang of theyse
Elfect of sochongs re fetustaons on csh hed

Cash and Cash Equivalmis, End of the Year

The ardizead notes from 1 bo 9 fomn o mbgral part ofthese Brancial daements
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M 200
UsD usD
1,72 437 3,300, 146
11,500 10,240
152,200
1,916,127 2.211,386
$09, 295 339,626
(F58,011) (847,555}
Q101,267)
rimis 1,685 487
23ML115 1,689, 457
3,628,385 3,538,528
11,500)
7,547,000 5625385
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Naie 1 - General Information

Mo Abd (ekal Caymm Lid ("the Company™ and 2 abadiny fogdher “the Crois™) i incorparbed w5 dormaled o the
Coymamn Islands The address of the ragiderad offtces 12 PO Box 30590T, Uglend Houze, South Chech Srest, Jrind Coypman,
Cuyrnan fxlanede. The prinapal sdavities of the Group aned Company daning the pear were the provenon of investmenl advaoe and
invedmmnl managanal paveces o thind paties and other group memksrs Thees non-stabdtery finanasl fabenets hive ben
prepared o aid the prepacaion of consolidited fnmaal Satersrnds for the intamneditie parenl cormpeeny

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Princdples
The prnczpal socoirring policess sdaptad e sat ot below

Bazis of preparation

Theee Group aned Coenpany’s fean aal fabarmis hav ebem prop ared in aocordan oe with nbarrabional Fanand ol Reporting Stndards
e adopted by the Eurep s Unaon (FRS: & by the EU and [FRIC mbaprdations apphicable bo campanies reporimg
urder IFEE. A d 31 March 2021, the Cofmpary adopbad all IFR3: snd intaprd alions bl Fod b e ssouad by the Interrotionl
Aooinbing Stasdirds Roard CLASE™) and Ietamahcdnd Fraedal Réapadog Inbapretadions Cammmitles (CIFRICT), and awdorssd
by the BT The sccounting policies sa ot below have boen spplind consistmtly to all paveds prepenied in these BEnancal
Astanmiz FREr comprese scounting fandards izneed by the [ASE md &1 predecesror body i wdl a3 sterpediahions izmued by
the TFREC and dl3 predecesor bondy,

In preparng thas 2o of Enancial Aatenenls, the Canpany preparsd placsble dowrside somanos sudh o reduction in ree e
doe o plebal macke dedine reculting from the pandsmoe. The diredors hor & adopted the poing comoem basis of pesparatson in
prepaning thess fnancial statements for the Bllowing ressons: 1) the Company hes mafficet cgital reav & Lo withetand severd
yoars of losses; i9) the Cangany has 3 Hﬁlﬂtﬂwm badanoe shed with cash reserves al the year and, and 510) the Company”s foved
erpees base o5 selativaly low. As e result, the dusectors hawe » Pscrable expectatson that the Compary has PeokECEs 10
coxikiraee s operaions for & lesst | 2months from the dabe ofth ee finanaal datemenks. Thre foee they conlamua to adopt the going
corioam badis in peeparing tene aocounts

Basis of consalbdation

Subsrdisnes are mbities controlledby the Group. Control exists when the Group hes mﬁw to gomem the firanaal end op enting
polscies of an mbity 3035 bo chlbem banefits Fom s sctivibés In spemmg oonbod, the Group talus ento considaation potential
vatmng nghts that are curnmtly snercazmble The scquesstson date a5 the dabe on which control is transfered to the soquiser The
finmnaad statemerks of subsidianes ane indudad i the consolidated finencal stberments from the datethat corkrol commences
ugksl the dabe that conircd cesses. Loznes spplicable bo the non-controdleng mbarests in & subadaey are allocsbed bo the pon-
conirodlmyg inbensts anen 1 doing 2o amires the non-ombrodlimg. inbaredts tohare s defiat balanoe

Hew noommting standards
The directors do ot consider thet any pew acooumhing stndands bad & matenal impact on the Coampany i the ozt yer

Mrsuranmi conventim
The finnasl dabernarichace bea propaned under thehistoneal o conventson

Estimates and nsumptions

The preparutyon of finenaal stbements requires the directors bo mace etimates mnd sesampdions thet sffect the amounis reported
bor azsetsand lishilitves u o thebalmce shest dal eand th e emounts reported for ermue and epenses duning the yer Thembere
ofestimation memns that pobuad cutoomes could differ from those estimates. The mnamptions and etemates, which are conteoously
revpewed, are basad o pet epen @i nd other factors, meluding epectabions cagarding liedy dev dopments 1o the fitize a1
31 Mandh 2021 and 2020 there were fie matenal et o gnEmplions

Accounis receivable

Acoounts recervab] & indude amounts due for managament, ﬂvlsu}-mdpu'ﬁnme fees and pmeoumts dige from oyt oemeers and
okhers Mlimﬂ:mvtlenrqr;ﬁlem danmnd arwithm oneyear They ae recorded in thebalmce sheet of cosf, redupsd
by sppeogeate allowmoes for estimated imecoreable amounds, ;d they oe inkerest banng

Accounts payahle

Acunts payable indude amounts due for wlm services and parformnanoe bes and amounts due to vadors and othees
All sccounts payable are dasaBed scording to the of the contractual arrangamert anbered sndo They are payable on
dernanid o within one year and a0e recorded on the balmos sheet o ooel Amounts owad bo prop undetalangs e ungeaused,
ntarest e and bove no foced temms of repayment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cushy mnd cach equivalents comprise cath anbanics and inhand and shor-term deposits withan ongenal matunty of three months
or lessand formgn aummaes had by the Group and Company, Forthe purposes of the cah flow stabement, cash ;nd cash
sqarmalants conmrt of cuh and cash equivalmts oz defined above, net of cutstanding bank ov edrafts

Orperating nevenses
Openitmyg revern e mclude myestment won sgement, invetmmt advisory md performomee fess Operating reveruss are mepmred

of the fier watue of the corrd entson receaved or pecavahle fir ernces prwdad m the o] cours e of buaness, net of dyscournds,
trmil B, VAT and cther sabes related taces
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Operating revenues (continaed)

[FES 15, Reveue from Coetrads with Customnars replaced. TAS 123 Revenwe mnd inbroduced a five step sppeoach 1o reverue
recogrutaon’ () identi Bring the contrct with the customen, 1) identabying the paformancs ob hgateons, un idatify the conlrad. prce
fmtoculled revernis, 1wialbocate the omsiderstion tothe rdermt paformnos cbligahons, ind ) nemgrasng the revamue 2= the
pafommance chligdions me satished

[vedtment meragenert nd ld":uj{!:ﬂ md emcoisted durges s recogased when the sevices concamed e rndeed
Envestment mansg ement and advisory fees arecaladabed sap eromtag o of mrdsundermanagemmt Coammasacrs e recegised
e i brade dibe bans, caloulated on a peromilage of the sale Performance fes o peoogrnsad n the perod 16 whidh they basome
dus and colletable

Operating expmses
Crpeniting epmss wre acoounted for when they become poyable

Forsim airricis
The Binctacnal and presartational asrency of the Group and Company =178 dallas (8

Transactions i auerena s other than U5 dollers we reconded o the rates of ecchange prevailing on the dates of the transctions
it each balance cheet dabe, ety azoats avd Trahal that e dencminated in foragn currmaes are rebnmslded of the rabes
prevmlfing on lbe balace sheet date Honamonetary assels and hstalibes camoed o faor value that se deormonat ed m Sormgn
arrencies mre tricglabed of the mbes prevmling ot the datewhen faor vahue was delemmined. Gmns and loses msing on rdmnslstion
e mciuded mnd proft orloss for the penod, evcept for ecdhang ¢ differen ces anzmg on nonamond ary =3 o5 mmd Lishilities where
the cheeges m fir value mre recogridsed diredly in equidy

Finandal instnimemnts
The vast magoniy of the Company’s finmaal netnemes e ash md recvables whodh are measrsd d snotisad ot

The Comparmy has arabosted poterdsal credit [9se on all Eronasl scsete thel ore messursd ot amontecad o Fadors onsidarsd
i detemmining whether a default 15 kely or posnible inchsde whether o payment 1 ovendue (and thee Bength of that panod), my
knin detaroruaon in the credit qalaty of a dinbfcounberparty or cther izauee that couldade wredy affed & client’o/ount sparty's
coadit qualaty

For firancal seds whersthers 12 nolausn resuss affeding credit quality, atpeded aredil lostes ara al ailded based on the losse
that are epeded Lo beinaimed sver a rolling terelvemonth penicd. Given the nabure of the Company’s Enancial mcde () o modly
cazh ot bank), thee 15 & very low oedit nsie The Compamy 15 also considenng the use of money morket funds o inorase
diverseation and faether reduce credit nsk

Fee my finarvcial dgsats where the contrectual paymand i mote than 30 days pact due, the daliall podslaon 12 boasaime a inasds
in aredit sk Howeser, defiult lavds m the past have bomn mmenaberal ad theed weneno D reoar sbies past dus ae o 31 Mach
2021

Investemts in aebsidiaries
Invedmmis in rubsidiaries we stabed in thepaend company’s balencr shed ok cost less any prowizions for smpaimmmnt.

Ab exch stabamant of firancial posstaon dats, the Company revvews b camying ameucks of 2 myeamans 19 dabemmune whthe

thar {2 sy mndaction that those azsets have suffred inrpaareners. 17 any such indicalaon seists, the racovaable arnound of the
et it etinabed in onder o dderrnine the edend of sy arpairmend

Naote 3 — Investment n Subsidiary

Al 31 March 2021 and 31 Mandh 3020 the Compery had an mvestment of 31, In the opinion of the diredors, the Company's
wvetment iz oot umpaired Dietmls of the inwetment are as follows

Number, classand

al FrCE of shares

Investee hmmmm FPrincipal activicy IT‘H h;:: EE!I']
Mo Al (Cayrean) Lid %?::' General partnar . Eﬁ'ﬁ,&"

The submdiry's registerad address 15 190 Elgin Az evue, George Town, Grand Cayman, Coymmm Islands,
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARE ENDED 31 MARCH 221

Noted - Revenue from Contractswith Contemers

All pevenze pelites Lo the provision of e estenere adv ioe end vedmamnt managemenk savioes. Inthe following bable, revomes o
dizapgrogaled by primany gegraphacal marke

Countey 2021 2020

Carriraen Ielmeds 18308380 12213975

Note 5§ - Taxation

At 31 Mardh 2020 the tax rate spplicsble tothe Group and the Company’s profits was (e becmize there 1500 (ax lerred
l’.‘ljm Islands companies Thrfun]:myng.mﬂd for UK tax witheffet rom 1 Odober 3020

Taxes o inoome for the year mded 31 March 2021 ware & follows

021 2020
Curmemt T
LR corporation b o 19546 (2015 1940 based on net pevenue ] {182 200) § -
Tomal Cument Incomve Tax Expmse Tz, 200) -
Total Income Tax Expmse 5 (83 300y % -

A recnianlaabron Balweeen the amont Hlﬂw&ﬂ!ﬂ!ﬂlﬂ mmtﬂmmummeu refled od i onkimang
eperizon Sir the yeire endad 31 Mard 2021 i 2020 i presanted beow

a2 2000
Tax Reconciliston
Frofs before Lo (Od 20 - M 21 1 ok i -
Mt prolit multiplied by the standurd rabe of corporation tax in the TR0 1984
S 1584 (1E2 300} -
Tital Income Tax Expense! rom mntinuing operations 1 e 20y ¢ -
Effective tas mte for the year ~10.1P -

In the 2321 Eprng Budgd, the Sovemmimt armounesd thel from 1 Agnl 2023, the mon mte of T oapomntron tet mie will
inmease 1o 25% Thiswill hare o consequential effact. on the Companyr’s Bdure fioe charge

Note 6 - Financlal Risk Factors

The Grogp el Company’s financial matnaments compnes ach md cagh equvalents and recvable snd payable balances that
mree from st duly operabions. Al aeth e cashi equival ents ere cameed ot oot whedh 15 consedenad 80 spprosimste to for v due
dre b the shert ber maturity of thess fnanoal metraments The menn ek Esocisted with the Group and Campany’s finan ol
pzets ed Dinbidibres me et catbelow

Credit risk

Credt nek it defined a2 the nek of financaal loss due bo a courderpaty s Gubure bo Boncour 112 cbligation prinapally in rdatson 1o
Irieadzons whars the Grodp ar Campacy provwdes poods o savices on delarad berre od whar s o inrests or deposits fuplus
aach The Groip or Comparny do nol believe that ther are matenally exposed 1o dredil nske &t 1k sales debbors are marngsd group
funds md therefore ronagement and perfomance et recervable ane govemned by i agreements wnth these finds To miigabe
ey residml ndk of these aseets falmg to be delivered, the Group md Company mazre that the temms of these sgrefments in
relation to paymmts of menagement and performoce fem mre adh aed B by monibonng its aged dettor smalysis agains the sgreed
serrice lona] agrearmenls

The Group and Comipary adopte the policy of dealing with custamers of sppropnate radit Tusbory, For other francial ateds, the
Croup and Campany adepls thepolicy of dealing wth fireme o metibulions o d other cunterpartees with high oradit rbmgs Them
e o fnanaal asds past due snd [ or impared as ot 31 March 2021 and 2000 Traderecavables ane due o laad quartady, md ane
ntermmlliy zeitlad witkan 30 dinge of therr dus dafe There sre fio overdie irade recevables st the balance shet dabe

Fusther, with regand tobank deponts, the Group and Commpany only deposts monsy wilh spprovsd cosnbapartios on agresd Lame

Market risk

Mlarieet rzke Gor systerrnc ke is defined s tha rsiewhach 2 commen toan entire dees of assels o [l R whensty thas valis
an fldude arply beomize of smeornie dunge or dthe everts that wrped large portions of the macket The Group and
Comy donot belpare that they are epod ol to maeml modked nék as the s the Jroup md Company manag e areledd by
s fior the benefit of fand holders through sepseate ezl entatyes
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARE ENDED 31 MARCH 221

Naode 6 - Finandal Risk Factors (continned)

Currency sk
Currancy saok 15 defined as the rigo that the valus of Groap of Company aeds end hlbalitie danomuntad i aurrences other than
thve Asvatdonal curency of the Group. or © will change tn vahee due tomeovenanks in forsign sedhange rbe The Group

and Company have etponure to aemency nle, ansing paminly fom ash nd recevablen rdlding o Tee wnoome i dafferent
axrecie The FXrabe used o trnslabe the smounts & yeur od e dizdosed bdow. AL 31 March 2021 and 2020, had thess
arramcies srengthealiwedomed by 100 agrinst the TED with all other wansbles icluding tax rte being held constant, the
Group and Company's totel eposare Lo aaregy nsk would have ben highanlower by sppromemataly $46,.600

Cuprem ey 2021 2020
(e ve USDY)

Py 11065 1082

GEF 724 1)

50D 1. 3459 1. 4254

EUR 08531 09103

HED 17754 77525

Liquidity risk and Financial sobvmey sk
Lequadity e 12 defined as the sk that the Group or Company wall eeot be dbleto me ais firanaal chlighions & they ] dee
The Greup md Corpany’s mpeeosd b0 reanaging this rd ae be eeeare bl @ e suffieimt Hguedity to st it b ilises when
due, both under nommal and sressed condibions:

CapialranagEment

The Group sl Compaey cpital posslacn 12 monitorsd on & cngoing basas to aaue that ik 13 sdeqate There are no eftamally
irngosed capalal Fagairam ais

Note 7 - Related Party Transactlons

Tranzadion: bawem the Group and Company mdrelated parties ore discfosed baow

Debior as Creditor asat
Opemting Orpernting at 31 March 21 March
Year ended 31 March 2021 Rrvmues Expemses (1) 220 (b 02k
Hikko Azzet Maragermen. Americas, Ine i - 5 1422718 : - 1 120,838
Hikkeo dosset Maragenend Euops Lid . 8,290,427 - T, M2
Hildoo Assat Maragpemeg Co Lid - 3 TI0 - 10,652
Hikdoo Azzet Macagemest Asla Lid - 1,556,076 - 120,670
Hildetr Auszet Maragernend. Hong Kong - 164 56 - 10,393
Highwater Lamited - 106,470 -
Tal 5 - 8 15234257 3 . g L1E4es
Debior as Creditor asat
Operating Orpernting at 31 March 31 March 200
Year ended 31 March 2030 Fvmues Expmses () 2020 (b by
Hikkeo Azzet Maragemen. Amenica, Ine i - 5 4,700,036 5 - 1 E5 456
Hikko dosset Marapenend Euops Lid . 2,265,335 - oo, 051
Fikdoo Asset Maragenent Co , Lid . G 511 179,247 '
Hikke Azset Macapemest Asia Lid * 1,801,198 + 13738
Hikko Azest Muagernert Hong Kong - 115458 - 7,000
Tl 5 - 3 15Sesms 5 179,247 5 LERTM
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MIEEQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARE ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Naode T - Helated Party Transaciions (contimaed)

(@) Cpersting mpanses pad torelated parties o payshle wnder inwastmend manapenaet gemnats ndaes for fund
MG ATIANG Sarice

() The amounks cubstanding e unzeased md will bezettlad incash Mo pematest havs bein prm or pecewad. Mo proeizione
hawe beovn rraads Bor doubtiis] debts inoerpet of the amounits owed By relabad partaes

Hikieo Assel Mmnaganmnt Amences, Ine, Hikko Asse Mmagenat Eurcpe Lid | Hikko Asrd Manspament Asta Lid and Hikko

Assd. Mmnagemat Hong Bong are fdlow mubsidianies o Asset Bisnagement Co, Ld iz anoindiredt shassholde of the
sorarenbionsd subgidianes

Naobe® - Ultimaie Halding Company

The Comgany's rmedise paoed 12 Nikloo AM Global Holdings Lavubed, a oompaey loaged 1n the Thated EKingdom The
Compaery is s ndbaduey undetdeng of Sumitoro Meau Trust Holdings, Inc whach is theultimate parent comparny in Jagan

Thee bargent. grop an which thesensts of the Comgany mre consolidated 15 that headed by Sumitomne Matsui Trost Heldings, Ene,
1-1-2 Manuncuch, Chiyodeku, Tdoyo, Japan The conselidated Gnancaal steaments of this growp are avilable to the public
histp fhwers Soihpfen

Naode® — Subseguent Evenis

Subpequent bo the statanant of Brancial position date; there were no svants whach had an impad on the consolidabed nd indivedual
Einanaad stabements of the Comgpany,
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2021 30
2021 30 2021 31
8,806,503 1,203,673 7,947,000 1,086,196
1,930,444 263,853 1,941,186 265,321
23,754 3,247 71,250 9,738
10,760,701 1,470,773 9,959,436 1,361,256
10,760,702 1,470,773 9,959,436 1,361,256
184,842 25,264 218,179 29,821
96,451 13,183 156,805 21,432
1,108,066 151,450 1,183,495 161,760
101,510 13,874
1,490,869 203,772 1,558,479 213,013
480,000 2021 30
2021 31
480,000 480,000 65,606 480,000 65,606
8,789,833 1,201,394 7,920,957 1,082,636
9,269,833 1,267,001 8,400,957 1,148,243
10,760,702 1,470,773 9,959,436 1,361,256

136.68
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2021 30
2021 30 2021 31

8,806,503 1,203,673 7,947,000 1,086,196
1,930,444 263,853 1,941,186 265,321
23,754 3,247 71,250 9,738
10,760,701 1,470,773 9,959,436 1,361,256
1 0.137 1 0.137
1 0.137 1 0.137
10,760,702 1,470,773 9,959,437 1,361,256
184,842 25,264 218,179 29,821
96,451 13,183 156,805 21,432
1,108,066 151,450 1,183,495 161,760

101,510 13,874
1,490,869 203,772 1,558,479 213,013

480,000 2021 30
2021 31
480,000 480,000 65,606 480,000 65,606
8,789,833 1,201,394 7,920,958 1,082,637
9,269,833 1,267,001 8,400,958 1,148,243
10,760,702 1,470,773 9,959,437 1,361,256
136.68
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2021 30

2021 30 2021 31
9,001,245 1,230,290 18,599,369 2,542,162
9,001,245 1,230,290 18,599,369 2,542,162
(1,051,232) (143,682) (1,225,898) (167,556)
(6,761,405) (924,149) (15,229,787)  (2,081,607)
(12,498) (1,708) (25,058) (3,425)
(101,704) (13,901) (202,499) (27.678)
(7,926,839)  (1,083,440) (16,683,242)  (2,280,266)
1,074,406 146,850 1,916,127 261,896
(409) (56) (354) (48)
(1,121) (153) (11,146) (1,523)
(1,530) (209) (11,500) (1,572)
1,072,876 146,641 1,904,627 260,324
(204,000) (27,883) (182,200) (24,903)
868,876 118,758 1,722,427 235,421
868,876 118,758 1,722,427 235,421

136.68
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2021 30
¢ >y ¢y ¢ >y c > Cc )y D
480,000 65,606 6,198,530 847,215 6,678,530 912,821
1,722,427 235,421 1,722,427 235,421
480,000 65,606 7,920,957 1,082,636 8,400,957 1,148,243
868,876 118,758 868,876 118,758
480,000 65,606 8,789,833 1,201,394 9,260,833 1,267,001
136.68
2021 30
30 2021 31
1,074,406 146,850 1,916,126 261,896
(1,530) (209) (11,500) (1,572)
58,237 7,960 909,296 124,283
(67,611) (9,241) (313,108) (42,796)
1,063,502 145,350 2,500,815 341,811
(204,000) (27,883) (182, 200) (24,903)
(204,000) (27,883) (182,200) (24,903)
859,503 117,477 2,318,615 316,908
7,947,000 1,086,196 5,628,385 769,288
8,806,503 1,203,673 7,947,000 1,086,196

136.68
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2021 30
3096T
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2021 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS  1ASB
IFRIC
) )
)
12
2021 30 2021 31
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30
2021 30
2021 30 2021 31
100
190
2021 30 2021 31
2020 10
2021 30 2021 31

166/213



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

2021
2020 31 10
46,800
2021 30 2021 31

JPY 32,000 76,000
GBP 13,000 31,000
SGD 12,000 12,000
EUR 3,000 3,000
HKD 1,000 12,000
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2021 30 30
2021 30 a
@ ®) ®)
C C )
747,159 112,773
4,009,158 624,682
1,281,088 255,627
667,378 106,001
56,622 8,983
6,761,405 1,108,066
2021 31 31
2021 31 a
@ ®) ®)
C C )

1,422,718 120,838
8,299,627 720,942
3,786,710 210,652
1,556,076 120,670
164,656 10,393

106,470
15,336,257 1,183,495

(a
(b
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@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2022 37,780,392 51 6,382
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2021 12 1,040,000,000 1,421 4,720
(©))
UFJ
2022 405
-2
SMBC
2022 875
(O]
2022 173 63
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®

DoubleLine Capital LP)
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Fund™),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of
February 28, 2022, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash
flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related notes (collectively
referred to as the “ financial statements” ).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as of February 28, 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in
its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Fund and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund’ s ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be

issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Fund’ s ability to continue as a going concern for a

reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 26, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-
statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Group®s and of the Parent Company’ s affairs as at 31 March
2021 and of the Group®s profit for the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the
Group and the Company®s financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are
no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going
concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (“ the going
concern period’ ).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group and Company’ s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and Company’ s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate;

we have not identified, and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group®s
or the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.
However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are

not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
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Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (* fraud risks” ) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company’ s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud.

Reading Board meeting minutes.

Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors” Report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group®s and the Company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
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so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability

in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

bate: 3 December 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of
DoubleLine Total Return Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the “ Fund” ), which
comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February 28,
2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management® s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors®™ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of DoubleLine Total Return Fund as of February 28, 2021, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 6, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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